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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for
a minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.hk.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLFE

2012 2011 2010 2009
- _—T——F _—T-TF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTIT ARETRT ARETR
RESULTS EF
Revenue g 23,987 45,108 32,923 3,300
Other Income HAp WA 2,481 764 614 2,877
Administrative expenses THFAX (15,586) (10,600) (8,248) (3,064)
Listing expenses FoRA% (3,633) (8,274) = —
Equity-settled shared-based AR BEER R
payment expenses (AR ALEE)
X (11,571) — — —
(Loss)/Profit before income tax PGB AT
(B18) & F (4,322) 26,998 25,289 3,113
Income tax expense FEHAY (4,515) (9,456) (7,277) (978)
(Loss)/Profit for the year REF
(B8) & F (8,837) 17,542 18,012 2,135
(Loss)/Profit for the year JEIEREE
attributable to: (B18) /&7
Owners of the Company ViYNETEZZ =N (9,486) 16,174 17,112 1,975
Non-controlling interests FIER S 649 1,368 900 160
(8,837) 17,542 18,012 2,135
As at 31 December
R+t=BA=+—~H
2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-—f —T——F —T-TF ZZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETI ARBTT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets mEE 228,405 189,437 168,260 161,913
Total liabilities BEE (31,102)  (136,884) (137,224) (151,585)
Net assets BEFE 197,303 52,553 31,036 10,328
Non-controlling interests RS (7,023) (6,374) (6,008) (5,108)
Equity attributable to owners ZA/NEIEZ 2SN
of the Company JEMLER 190,280 46,179 25,030 5,000
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to all of our shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the public
the annual report of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since
6 January 2012. Since then, we have been working diligently under
a complicated and rapid changing global economic environment. In
the west, the US budget deficit problem and the European debt
crisis resolution remains unresolved and uncertain, adding latent risks
of dwindling market size. In the east, in view of its over-heated
economy in the past few years, the government of The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) proposed to stabilize and maintain
the country’s annual growth rate at around 7% from 2011 to 2015,
in order to allow room to carry out the necessary adjustments to
achieve a healthy sustainable growth model for the country. The
combination of the above may pose challenges to small and medium
enterprises (“SMEs”) that focus on domestic markets or rely on global
trades.

In fact, in 2012, as a result of the macro control policies implemented
in the real estate sector in the PRC, the pace in real estate
construction and development projects was inevitably slowed down,
which has impacted the Group’s revenue generated from
performance guarantee, as the Group’s customers in performance
guarantee are mostly engaging in real estate-related business.

Nevertheless, revenue from the Group’s financial guarantee has
increased approximately 74% in 2012, representing that SMEs’
funding needs remain high and the Group’s business continues
maintaining a good momentum of growth under this complex
economic environment.

Knowing the fundamental funding needs of SMEs remain strong, to
better position the Group and to secure sustainable income and
business, as well as to capture market opportunities of different
industries, our teams have worked untiringly in the past year to
establish cooperation relationships with and negotiate for better
guarantee limits with banks and financial institutions so as to
strengthen the Group’s financial backbone. We have also expanded
our market presence in Quanzhou City and expanded our clientele
from solely SMEs to SMEs and individuals.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHE

In November 2012, we have entered into a letter of intent with a
Hong Kong based financial services institution to establish a micro-
finance company in Xiamen City for the provision of money lending
services. We believe that such moves will effectively expand the
financial services platform and income stream of the Group.

In 2012, the State Council of the PRC has issued the 7 b B %%
(012) 145 XKEA BB E — TR D MBI CERREERNE
R) (State Department Guo Fa (2012) Article No. 14 (“State
Department Opinion on Providing Further Support to SMEs for its
Healthy Development”, being its unofficial English translation),
pursuant to which different measures are deployed to help resolved
the difficulties that SMEs are facing in obtaining bank financing in
the PRC.

We anticipate that there will be an improvement in liquidity and
availability of credit from financial institutions in the coming year.
Though we remain confident in the long-term prospects of the
guarantee and financing industries in the PRC despite the challenging
economic environment, we remain cautious on any possible impact
from the ongoing changing global economic environment and the
PRC regulatory environment. We will continue to look for
opportunities to expand the service platform, enhance the service
quality and strengthen the risks control of the Group in order to
maximize the returns to Shareholders and lower the Group’s overall
risks.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s
Directors, management team and staff members for their dedication
and hard work, our customers for their confidence and support for
our business, and our business partners, investors, Shareholders
and professional parties for their trust and support.

Chang Xi Min
Chairman

20 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

BRIEF INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing financial
guarantee services, performance guarantee services and advisory
services in the PRC.

In respect of the financial guarantee services, in principle, the Group
facilitates SMEs by acting as the guarantor for the SMEs to secure
credit facilities from lending banks.

The Group also provides its customers with performance guarantees,
guaranteeing that the customers will perform their contractual
obligations to the counter-parties in relation to, inter alia, delivery of
goods, services contracts and other obligations. Save for the
aforesaid, the Group is also permitted to provide various kinds of
performance guarantees, including without limitation, provision of
contract tendering, bidding guarantee, trade-related guarantees and
litigation bond, which are yet to be provided by the Group.

In addition to the provision of guarantee services, the Group also
provides its customers with advisory services. The advisory services
aim to strengthen (i) the customers’ communication with the lending
banks, financial institutions or their counter-parties; and (ii) the
understanding on the recent developments of financing regulations,
and policies and market practices. With the Group’s knowledge of
banks’ credit assessment practice, the Group is able to assist its
customers in improving their financial, accounting and management
systems and presentation.

The Company was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since
6 January 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the global economy was filled with uncertainties and the
international environment was complicated and volatile. The PRC
government decisively implemented a pro-active fiscal and prudent
monetary policy to realize stable growth, price controls and economic
structure adjustment. During 2012, the PRC inflation eased, and the
PRC government gradually eased the credit terms and reduced
required reserve ratio for the first time. At the same time, there were
still many business owners in the PRC requiring funds to fuel their
businesses in the growing economy. The Group responded to the
dual challenges of national policy adjustments and market changes
proactively. Taking advantage of these growth opportunities, the
Group accelerated its pace in business expansion and achieved a
comprehensive and balanced development. Below are some of the
Group’s significant business achievements in 2012:

() On 6 April 2012, the Group purchased a property at Unit 71,
Level 6, Tower 4, Fortune Centre, No. 3 Shi Fu Main Street
West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province of the
PRC, for a consideration of approximately RMB1,181,800. The
gross floor area of this property is approximately 209 square
meters. This new property is situated at the same building as
the other two properties already acquired by the Group in 2011
at: (i) Units 72 and 73, Level 6 of Tower 4; and (i) Unit 1 on
Basement Level 2, Fortune Centre, No. 3 Shi Fu Main Street
West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province. The
aforementioned Fortune Centre properties Unit 71, 72 and 73
on Level 6 of Tower 4 are used as the office of the Group in
Hebei Province of the PRC and warehouse of Units 1 on
Basement Level 2 has not yet officially commenced operation.
The Group has moved into the new office in April 2012. In July
2012, the Group has also launched its nationwide database at
its Hebei office. The Board believes that the new offices,
warehouse and the nationwide database will facilitate the future
business developments of the Group in Hebei Province.
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BEENWR DN

(i)

12

On 30 May 2012, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with BE XM T ERKEEE NEERBRAF
(Fujian Quanzhou City Licheng District Chuanxin Microfinance
Company Limited (“Chuanxin Microfinance”), being its
unofficial English translation), a subsidiary of Fujian Hongxing
Erke Sports Goods Co. Ltd., to provide the borrowers of
Chuanxin Microfinance guarantee services at the maximum
aggregate guarantee amount of RMB100 million. The
cooperation between the Group and Chuanxin Microfinance
will allow the Group to expand its market presence in Quanzhou
City and can expand our clientele from solely SMEs to SMEs
and individuals. Details of the cooperation agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 June
2012.

On 30 November 2012, the Company has submitted an
application of the micro-finance license to the Xiamen Municipal
Government (the “Micro-Finance License”) pursuant to a
letter of intent entered into with a Hong Kong based financial
services institution to establish a micro-finance company (the
“Micro-Finance Company”) in Xiamen City of the PRC for
the provision of money lending services. The Board believes
that the establishment of the Micro-Finance Company and the
application for the Micro-Finance License will facilitate the
expansion of the financial services platform and source of
income of the Group. As at the date of this report, the said
application is still pending for approval by the relevant PRC
authority.

(ii)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the revenue for the Group
was approximately RMB23.99 million (2011: RMB45.11 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 47% as compared with
the previous year. The detailed analysis of revenue is as follows:

(0

Financial Guarantee

Revenue from financial guarantee of the Group represents
revenue from the provision of financial guarantee services and
the relevant consultancy services. For the year ended 31
December 2012, revenue from financial guarantee of the Group
was approximately RMB13.54 million (2011: approximately
RMB7.79 million), representing an increase of approximately
74% and accounted for approximately 56% of the Group’s total
revenue in 2012 (2011: approximately 17.3%). For the year
2012, of the RMB13.54 million of revenue from financial
guarantee, approximately RMB6.62 million of which was from
the provision of financial guarantee services and the remaining
of approximately RMB6.92 million was from the provision of
the relevant consultancy services.

For the year 2011, of the RMB7.79 million of revenue from
financial guarantee, approximately RMB4.58 million of which
was from the provision of financial guarantee services and the
remaining of approximately RMB3.21 million was from the
provision of the relevant consultancy services.

The number of new contracts for financial guarantee entered
into for the year ended 31 December 2012 were 84 (2011: 36),
representing an increase of approximately 133% in the number
of new contracts entered into. Since the Group was more
familiar with the guarantee business, expanded its customer
portfolio from time to time and has more new customers which
were referred from existing customers of the Group. As a result,
more new financial guarantee contracts were entered into in
2012.
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BEENWR DN

(i) Performance Guarantee

Revenue from performance guarantee of the Group represents
revenue from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the relevant consultancy services. For the year ended 31
December 2012, revenue from performance guarantee of the
Group was approximately RMB10.45 million, accounted for
approximately 44% of the Group’s total revenue in 2012 (2011:
72%). The main reasons for the decrease in revenue of
performance guarantee were due to (i) the decrease in the
number of performance guarantee services contracts entered
into during the year, as most of the Group’s performance
guarantee services customers are engaged in the sale of
construction materials, water and heating installation and sale,
air-conditioning engineering and real estate development etc.;
it was inevitably impacted by the slow down of the real estate
development and/or construction projects under the macro
control policies in the PRC; and (i) a decrease in average
contract size with the customer of the Group during the period
under review. For the year 2012, of the RMB10.45 million of
revenue from performance guarantee, approximately RMB3.27
million of which is from the provision of performance guarantee
services and the remaining of approximately RMB7.18 million

is from the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

For the year 2011, of the RMB32.5 million of revenue from
performance guarantee, approximately RMB10.1 million of
which is from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the remaining of approximately RMB22.4 million is from

the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

(il)y  Standalone advisory services

Standalone advisory services of the Group represent advisory
services offered to customers on a standalone basis without
backed by a guarantee service. Nevertheless, most of the
Group’s advisory services are usually backed by guarantee
services, unless requested by customers or the relevant
guarantee applications were rejected by banks. During the year,
the Group'’s total standalone advisory services income for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB Nil (2011:
approximately RMB4.8 million). The Group’s financial advisory
services provided to its customers included conducting
feasibility studies, preparing financial proposals and introducing

fund providers to them.
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Other Income

The Group’s other income formed by bank interest and exchange
gain. The Group’s other income for the two years ended 31 December
2011 and 2012 were approximately RMBO0.76 million and RMB2.48
million respectively. The increase of approximately 226.3% was mainly
attributable to the increase in the amount of average pledged bank
deposits and exchange gain during the year ended 31 December
2012,

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) business tax; (ii) salary
and welfare expenses for management and administrative personnel;
(iii) depreciation and amortization; (iv) rental expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. For the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s administrative expenses
amounted to approximately RMB15.59 million (2011: approximately
RMB10.6 million), which accounted for approximately 65% of the
Group’s revenue (2011: approximately 23.5%). The increase in
administrative expenses was primarily due to increase in staff costs,
legal and professional fees and other related expenses resulting from
our business growth and the listing.

(Loss)/Profit Before Income Tax and (Loss)/Profit
Attributable to Shareholders

The loss before income tax for 2012 was approximately RMB4.3
million, as compared to a profit of approximately RMB27.0 million in
2011. Excluding the exceptional listing expenses of approximately
RMB3.6 million and the share-based payment of approximately
RMB11.6 million which is one-off and non-cash in nature, the profit
before income tax would have been approximately RMB10.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 59.7% when compared
to that of 2011. The profit before income tax margin, arrived by
dividing the profit before income tax excluding the exceptional listing
expenses and share based payment by total revenue, maintained at
a satisfactory level of 45.4%, a decrease from 78.2% in 2011.
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The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year 2012
was approximately RMB9.5 million, as compared to a profit of
approximately RMB16.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2011. Such decrease was mainly due to (i) the decrease in the
revenue resulting from the decrease in the number of performance
guarantee contracts entered during the year and the decrease in
average contract size with the customers of the Group; and (i) the
expenses resulting from business growth and the listing of the
Company, as well as the share-based payment which is one-off and
non-cash in nature.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

As at 31 December 2012, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB47.4 million (2011
approximately RMB43.3 million) and approximately RMB4.0 million
(2011: approximately RMB3.8 million) respectively, representing an
increase in pledged bank deposits of approximately RMB4.1 million
and an increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMBO0.2 million as compared to the positions as at 31 December
2011. The Group generated negative cash flows of approximately
RMB2.4 million from operating activities during the year, the Group
made substantial payment of approximately RMB16.1 million for the
construction of the new head office in Xiamen City.

During the year, the Group did not have any borrowing which bore
floating interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates
to the interest bearing bank balances and pledged bank deposits.
The Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate during the
year but may enter into interest rate hedging instruments in the future
to hedge any significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing net debts (i.e.
amounts due to Shareholders less pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) by total equity, representing approximately
116.5% as at 31 December 2011 and Nil as at 31 December 2012.
The amount due to Shareholders as at 31 December 2011 was fully
capitalized upon listing of the Company on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any
amount due to Shareholders and borrowing.
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Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability.

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Affiliated Companies

Other than in connection with the Group’s reorganization for the listing
of the Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012,
there was no other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2012.

OUTLOOK

In view of the over-heated PRC economy in the past few years, in its
12th Five-Year Plan, the PRC government proposed to stabilize the
country’s annual growth rate at around 7% from 2011 to 2015, in
order to allow room to carry out the necessary adjustments to achieve
a healthy sustainable growth model for the country. In the beginning
of year 2012, the PRC government proposed its 7.5% GDP target
for 2012, which expressed its expectation of economic slowdown.
In the international economic market, although the U.S. launched
QE3 (the third round of quantitative easing operation) to stimulate
the economy, the budget deficit problem is still difficult to solve and
the economic data are still far from expectation. Besides, the U.S.
government postponed the discussion of fiscal cliff, which brings
more concern to the financial market. In addition, the lack of practical
European debt crisis resolution adds latent trouble to the market.

In 2012, the State Council of the PRC has issued the B17% B Bl %
(2012) 14 KB B B E — P X B EME G ERRERNE
R)(State Department Guo Fa (2012) Article No. 14 (“State
Department Opinion on Providing Further Support to SMEs for its
Healthy Development”, being its unofficial English translation),
pursuant to which different measures are deployed to help resolved
the difficulties that SMEs are facing in obtaining bank financing in
the PRC, which include, among other things,: (a) commercial banks
are encouraged to lower their barriers in granting loans to SMEs
and to provide them with more financing products and services such
as supply chain financing; (b) while enforcing supervision and
maintaining risks at acceptable levels, it is encouraged to develop
micro-financing companies to resolve the financing needs of the
SMEs; (c) expanding the channels for financing and support the SMEs
using current assets as pledges; and (d) encouraging guarantee
companies to increase the scale and level of guarantee to SMEs
etc..
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Based on the above, notwithstanding the Group is facing a
complicated global business and economic environment, the Group
remains positive and cautiously optimistic about the prospects of
the financing and guarantee industry in the PRC.

Furthermore, in Xiamen City and Fujian Province, our main business
operating regions, the local government implemented the Interim
Administrative Measures of micro-credit company, further tightening
the operator qualification of the micro-credit companies. In many
other provinces and cities over the PRC including Inner Mongolia
Province, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province and a lot of cities and
others strengthened the monitoring of credit guarantee companies
and also evocated the licenses of quite a lot of financing guarantee
institutions. In particular, the government of Zhejiang Province
published the “Five-Year Plan of the Development of Financing
Guarantee Institutions”, expecting to reduce the number of guarantee
institution from 676 to around 400 by the end of 2016, with an
elimination rate of 41%. From the examples of Zhejiang Province
and many other regions, it is expected that the guarantee industry in
the PRC will become more concentrated. Therefore, as a quality
sizable enterprise in the guarantee industry, the Group is expected
to be benefited from the industry consolidation.

One of the future plans of the Group is to develop the micro-finance
business and the cooperation with Chuanxin Microfinance,
information of which was disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Business Review” in this report. The Group will continue to
strengthen its existing businesses and to look for opportunities to
expand the financial services platform and income source of the
Group, in order to maximize the return to Shareholders. Furthermore,
the Group will continue to (i) strengthen the Group’s risk management
committee; (i) strengthen its internal control and post-monitoring
procedures to deal with default risk more effectively and efficiently,
including taking possession of and liquidating collaterals; (iii)
standardize the products and services wherever possible; and (iv)
upgrade the Group’s management information system to improve
the effectiveness and the timeliness of the Group’s overall operations
and risk control measures.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS AND THEIR EXPECTED SOURCES
OF FUNDING

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Capital
Commitments and Capital Expenditure” in this report, the Group has
no specific future plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2012.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital commitments represent the Group’s commitment in relation
to (i) the acquisition of the property, which is intended for warehouse
storage use (‘Hebei Property’) by jal 1t KB 1 THER B R A &) (Hebei
Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited, being its unoffical English
translation) (“Hebei Da Sheng”), a joint venture enterprise
established in the PRC and an indirect 95% owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (i) the construction of a commercial building on a
piece of land in Xiamen City purchased by A% 17 (EF9) IR AR
7% B](Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company Limited, being its
unoffical English translation) (“Xiamen Da Sheng”), a joint venture
enterprise established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Xiamen Property”).
information in relation to the Hebei Property and Xiamen Property,
please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 29 December
2011 (“Prospectus”) and the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (“2011 Annual Report”).

For further

The capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately RMB1.8
million (2011: RMB1.8 million) for land and buildings, RMB Nil (2011
RMB2.5 million) for leasehold improvement and approximately
RMB21.7 million (2011: 31.4 million) for construction in progress
respectively.

The increment in capital expenditure of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012 was approximately RMB29.4 million (2011:
approximately RMB19.1 million), representing an increase of
approximately 53.9%. Such increment was principally attributable
to the increase in expenditure in: (a) buildings, (b) furniture, fixtures
and office equipment, (c) motor vehicles, (d) leasehold improvements
in connection with the Group’s Hebei and Xiamen offices, and (e)
construction in progress in relation to the construction of the Xiamen
Property; as well as the addition and transfer from deposits paid in
connection with the land use rights.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 36 employees
(2011: 28 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB3.8 million (2011:
RMB2.8 million). The remuneration policy is determined with reference
to market condition, performance and qualification. During the year,
there was no year-end bonus paid to employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has granted
an aggregate of 150,000,000 share options to the eligible persons
under the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
1 December 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”). The Group
participates in the PRC government-sponsored social security system
as required under the relevant PRC laws and regulations. The social
security system in the PRC includes retirement, work injury, medical
care, unemployment and other insurance coverage for the
employees. The Group also maintains the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme and insurance for its employees in Hong Kong.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB. The
Company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress
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An analysis comparing the business objectives stated in the
Prospectus for the period from 20 December 2011, being the latest
practicable date as defined in the Prospectus (the “LPD”) to
31 December 2012 with the Group’s actual business progress for
the period from the LPD to 31 December 2012 is set out below:

i) Expand the Group’s market presence in Hebei
Province

Business objectives for Actual business progress for

the period from the LPD the period from the LPD to 31

to 31 December 2012 December 2012

—  Establish cooperation — A cooperation relationship
relationships with has been made with
Agricultural Bank of Agricultural Bank of China
China Limited and Limited and China
China Construction Construction Bank
Bank Corporation Corporation.

—  Commence business —  The Group is applying for the
operation of Cangzhou registration certificate and
City representative pending for approval from
office BT LERE B

(Industry and Information
Technology of Cangzhou
Bureau, being its unoffical
English translation).

—  Negotiate with banks —  Zhangjiakou City
to increase guarantee Commercial Bank has
limit increased Hebei Da Sheng’s
guarantee limit from 5 times
to 8 times.
—  Conduct seminars to —  Some potential customers
potential customers in could not join the seminar in
Hebei Province between July and December

2012. The seminar of
supply chain financing to
banks and potential
customers is therefore
postponed to between
January and June 2013.

NTIR-IBE—F+T-_A-Z+HEBKRE
BERE &EATHR(RETTEE])
2T —F+ - /=t —HEEBBRER
PR B R REREATAME_T——F
+ A=+ BLBRAASEEEREREE
B LB 2 D AT

) EAXREEMTLE 2™
nE

BRUTEEE BETTEEE
—E-CF —E-CF
+=A=t+-H +=A=+-H
MEZXBER  HECERRBEE

— HREREX — CHEVERER
RITRHE TR AERAH]
BAF R R BERRT
B2 RRTT Rz ERARR
BHhAERR VAERIE -
ARV A
LA

— RRRMNS — ZARELHRE
REMBER BMTRRRE
LBERH BZHERER

BT IEMNE
BlLREMLERC
BE o

—  ERTER — REXOTEER
BIERE TE R KR
B T2 ERERHS

fEiEmE8fE -

— AALEE — mR=F-=f
ERFEH tAET=AH
e MEHREES

PRihzER
e - At
BERPRIE
I BV
HREEE-F
—=E-AEA
CELEGE

21



China Assurance Finance Group Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

XGEERRERERERE 2R

ii) Expand the Group’s market presence in
Xiamen City and other cities surrounding

Xiamen City

Business objectives for
the period from the LPD
to 31 December 2012

—  Establish cooperation
relationships with the
Industrial Bank Co.,
Ltd., Longhai
Zhangzhou

GCommercial Bank and

Ping An Bank

—  Negotiate with banks
to increase guarantee
limit

—  Conduct seminars to

potential customers in

Xiamen City

22

Actual business progress for
the period from the LPD to 31
December 2012

—  Aletter of intent has been
signed with Industrial Bank
Co., Ltd. and Ping An Bank
respectively. The Company
is awaiting for the
confirmation from the main
branches of the respective
banks.

—  Based on the current

progress, a letter of intent is

expected to be signed with
Longhai Zhangzhou
Commercial Bank between
January and June 2013

instead of the second half of

2012 as mentioned in the
2011 Annual Report.

— Ongoing negotiations with
various banks.

—  Aseminar of supply chain
financing to banks and
potential customers was
held on 18 October 2012.
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iii) Expand the scope of the Group’s existing

business and services

Business objectives for
the period from the LPD
to 31 December 2012

—  Commence guarantee
services for supply
chain financing in
Hebei Province and/or
Xiamen City

—  Commence project
guarantee and

procedural

preservative guarantee

businesses

—  The Group has entered into
a cooperation agreement
dated 30 May 2012 with
Chuanxin Microfinance in
Quanzhou City, which has a
registered capital of
RMB300 million (Note)
Note: The Group initially planned to expand its services to Quanzhou City

during the period from 1 July 2013 to 31 December 2013 as set out in
the implementation plan disclosed in the Prospectus. As the opportunity
arises, the Board considered that the cooperation agreement represents
a good opportunity for the Group to further expand its guarantee
business in the PRC and the Board considers that the terms of the
cooperation agreement are in normal commercial terms and in the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Details of
which please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1 June

Actual business progress for
the period from the LPD to 31
December 2012

—  Hebei Da Sheng and Xiamen
Da Sheng’s supply chain
financing service is still
under negotiation.

—  Ongoing negotiations.

2012 and the paragraph headed “Business Review” in this report.
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iv) Recruit additional expertise and allocate
more resources to improve credit risk

management

Business objectives for
the period from the LPD
to 31 December 2012

—  Recruit more staff with
high qualification

—  Build internal
nationwide database

—  Provide regular training
courses to staff
arranged by reputable
universities

—  Set up atraining
centre in Xiamen City
headquarter

—  Set up the risk
management centre in
Xiamen City
headquarter

24

Actual business progress for
the period from the LPD to 31
December 2012

—  The Group has recruited 7
more staff in the area of
accounting and sales
management during the
period.

—  The database was launched
in the Group’s new office
building in Hebei Province in
July 2012.

—  Certain staffs are attending
training courses organized
by reputable universities.
The Group will continue to
provide staff with various
professional training
courses.

—  As the Xiamen City
headquarter is still under
construction, it is expected
that the training centre will
be set up between May to
June 2013.

—  As the Xiamen City
headquarter is still under
construction, it is expected
that the risk management
centre will be set up
between May to June 2013.

[ B E 2

REMTAME
—E-—F

+=H=+-—H
MBzEBER

— BEE3
HBER

ac

— BYAH
ENETE g
[

— BE=E#R
KE - @
BIRM
IE 38 55 9l
B3t

— REMM
ABRRRAL

Bl

— REM®
ke AV
Rk g2
Bl

BREMITRAYZE
—g-=%
t=A=+-H
HECERREEE

— AEERHER
HELZest
RHEEREE
BzBT -

— ZAKEERZ
E—_F+A
TEEA R L
BZEFHAK
B EE
o

— BIMEILE
WERERK
BRI 2R
BoAEEE
BEYNRIB
TRESESR
EIBIIRE -

— HREMTE
08 7 3
o FEERE S
HOERZE
—=FH -~
AERE -

— @BAREMmE
B i 7E B2
o TEHE R
EERLER
—E—=F
T NAERA
i o



FEERARSHBEESRAT
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEAEBRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, aged 34, was appointed as executive Director
and the chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and
member of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chang is one
of the founders of the Group. He is responsible for the operation
and management of the Group. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor
degree in business management from the University of New
Brunswick of Canada in September 2000.

Mr. Chang was an independent non-executive director of Sincere
Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444) from June 2012 to
September 2012. Mr. Chang has over 7 years of experience in
property development before he set up the Group with Mr. Pang
Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director and the vice chairman of the
Company (the “Vice Chairman”). He joined his family business in
2000, served as a general manager of B P9 & i E i ZE A 7 (Xiamen
Xiaoxiang Real Estate Limited, being its unofficial English translation)
and directors of JA] 3L #7328 5 i 2= f 2 B BR 2 7] (Hebei New East
Asia Real Estate Development Company Limited, being its unofficial
English translation) and Al b R &% 1T #E R B IR A & (Hebei Da Sheng
Guaranty Company Limited, being its unofficial English translation),
an indirect subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chang is also the vice
chairman of 5k O LR35 4& & (Zhangjiakou City Chamber of
Commerce, being its unofficial English translation), the chairman of
REAMRINEE (Quanzhou City Chamber of Commerce of
Zhangjiakou, being its unofficial English translation), a committee
member of SR O T & F & & (Zhangjiakou City Youth Federation,
being its unofficial English translation) and a member of the board of
supervisors of Zhangjiakou City Commercial Bank Co., Limited.

Mr. Chang is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”).

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 44, was appointed as executive
Director and Vice Chairman, member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and authorized representative
of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr. Pang is one of the
founders of the Group. He is responsible for overall strategy
formulation and planning of the Group. Mr. Pang was an executive
director of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (stock
code: 353) from August 2005 to July 2007 and had participated in
various mergers and acquisitions and company restructuring.
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Mr. Chen Xiao Li, aged 42, was appointed as executive Director
and compliance officer of the Company on 1 December 2011. Mr.
Chen is responsible for overseeing the compliance issue and the
internal control of the Group. He is also a member of the credit
management standing committee of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained
a bachelor degree in laws from Hebei University in December 1998
and a master degree in laws from Tsinghua University in January
2005. He is a practising lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Chen has been
providing legal services to the Group since 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chang Xi Min, aged 65, was appointed as non-executive
Director and Chairman on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chang was the
editor of Xiamen Daily from 1983 to 1989, during which he studied
at The Open University of China (formerly known as “China Central
Radio and TV University”) and graduated in September 1988. Mr.
Chang was the economic consultant of Zhangjiakou Municipal
Government, the secretary general of Xiamen General Chamber of
Commerce, a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Hebei Province Committee of the PRC and a general
member of Zhangjiakou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He was an executive director of
Fairyoung Holdings Limited (now known as “Madex International
(Holdings) Limited”) (stock code: 231) from 1997 to 2003. Mr. Chang
has also been the chairman of Liaohai International Investment
Limited since 2001. He is the father of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an
Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 52, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director, chairmen of the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Company and the Remuneration Committee,
and member of the Nomination Committee on 1 December 2011.
Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree of economics from Macquarie
University in Sydney, Australia in April 1986. He is a fellow member
of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is currently the managing director and
founder of Mandarin Capital Enterprise Limited, a company
specialized in provision of financial advisory, merger and acquisition
and fund raising for both listed and private companies in Hong Kong
and the PRC. He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise Limited in
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2004 and started to provide financial advisory services to a wide
range of industries, such as real estate development industry and
dairy industry. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst &
Young in Hong Kong from 1988 to 1991. He also was the director
and the financial controller of Shenzhen China Bicycle Company
(Holdings) Limited, a listed company in the PRC from 1991 to 1999.

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, chairman of the Nomination
Committee and member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee on 1 December 2011. Mr. Lam graduated
from the Victoria University of Melbourne, Australia, with a bachelor
of Business degree majoring in Banking and Finance. He also earned
a master degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University of
Australia. Mr. Lam is currently the deputy chief executive officer of
China Eco-Farming Limited (Stock code: 8166); and an independent
non-executive director of (i) Chinese Food and Beverage Group
Limited (stock code: 8272); and (i) The Hong Kong Building and
Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145). He was the independent
non-executive directors of (i) China Bio-Med Regeneration
Technology Limited (stock code: 8158) from June 2008 to June 2009;
(i) China Railway Logistics Limited (stock code: 8089) from December
2008 to June 2009; and (iii) China Oriental Culture Group Limited
(stock code: 2371) from January 2008 to September 2010.

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 45, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director and member of the Audit Committee on 1
December 2011. Mr. Chow obtained a master degree in professional
accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October
2009. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow is currently an independent
non-executive director of DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
(stock code: 508). He was the independent non-executive directors
of (i) China Oriental Culture Group Limited (stock code: 2371) from
January 2008 to May 2011; and (ii) Pan Asia Mining Limited (stock
code: 8173) from November 2006 to August 2008. Mr. Chow was
also the chief financial officer of Chinese Food and Beverage Group
Limited (stock code: 8272).

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

TERIRME) EHMBBEBRS - Rt
EBR—NANN\EFE- NN —FERRNEE
ZRKBEHEN RGBSR - WAER—N
N—FE-NANNEFRRIPEATE (R
) Rt BRDE (—ERHE LT 2 AR
EIE=MUHREE -

MIKEXE 475 RZTE——F+=HA—
AEZTEARBIUIFRNITES  IERZEE
TE URBERZESERFMEZES 2K
B MELERBENBMNBRAESZFIE KX
B NSmESLEM - EBRITERS
Bh o WINESRMNEBIE REEASMER
T8 - MEARBTPEEREEREBRAF]
(R 5E - 8166) 2 BIFTEAREL © R()EA
REEBBR AR (RHRE : 8272) & (i)
EREEERBERAR (BRMHARS : 145) 2
BYERITES - BEO)R=ZZZENFSA
ETTNFAARFTEAEMESFERE
BRAR ARMHAIR : 8158) ; (iR ZZEEN
FH+ZAZEZTETNF AT EEKEE
BRAR (MRS - 8089) : KR =_F
ENF-REZZE-ZTFANAFRBERIX
{EEEBR AR RMMRSR - 2871) 2 B3k
MITES -

FERLE 45 RZE—F+=-H—
HEZEABIUERNITEERBEZZE SN
B - AXER_ZTTNF+AEBSHEEET
AREBEESHET B - FARBFHFAR
SHMAECERSERBASHMAE

BXRgE  ALERARESERERRA
BI(IRADRSR : 508) 2 B IERITES - BE
WWN—_EZEZNEF—AE_T——FHAEF
BRANXEEBBR 2R KRMDARR :
2371) RN =ZZEZERF+—AEZEFZ
NENAEETEEER AR BRHAI
817 B IEITES o AL ETNGRE
ARBEBBRABRMNDRSE : 8272)F 8
TS s o

27



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEAEBRERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 67, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Li is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group, responsible
for new guarantee product development and business expansion
strategy formulation. He graduated from the radio and automatic
control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic majoring in water
acoustics engineering in July 1969. Mr. Li is currently a consultant of
the R 4 2 SR £ 0 (China Logistics Productivity Promotion
Centre, being its unofficial English translation). From 1990 to 2005,
he was the general manager of China National Materials Storage
and Transportation Guangzhou Corp, a subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise which is engaged in securitisation management of pledged
assets for various financial institutions in The PRC since 1999. During
the period, Mr. Li conducted extensive researches on and has gained
extensive experience in (a) logistics management and project
guarantee businesses; and (b) securitisation of relevant assets along
the chain of logistics management for financial investments.

Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducted researches on mixed
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. He also
published various academic articles relating to “logistics bank and
risk management”. In 2007, Mr. Li, as the expert of the logistic
productivity center in the PRC and the editor of the {17 £ 1i7)
(“Logistics Technology”, being, its unofficial English translation) has
participated in examination and approval of the national standards
which are issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC, such as (¥ (b & Fim 2 E s {H R 1)
(“Assessment on the Satisfactory Level of the Logistic Enterprises” ,
being its unofficial English translation), { & 2 & & & & I8 & 3k)
(“Management Requirement of the Automatic Sorting Facilities”,
being, its unofficial English translation) and {17 & = 78 813@ A1)
(“General Specification for Logistics Quantitative Forecast”, being
its unofficial English translation) of the logistics industry standard in
the PRC.

Mr. He Jian Han, aged 35, joined the Group in April 2011. Mr. He is
currently the Manager of the Group and responsible for the risk control
of the Group. He is also a member of the risk control committee of
the Company. Mr. He obtained a master degree in business
administration from Xiamen University in 2010. He worked in Xiamen
branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.
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Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 47, joined the Group in September 2006.
Mr. An is currently the chief business supervisor ofz Jil b A B 1742
RABR A 7] (Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited, being its
unofficial English translation), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
and responsible for market development, sales and preliminary
approval of new projects. He graduated from Hebei Radio and TV
University with a diploma in financial accounting in July 1988. Mr. An
also graduated from Central Party School of the Communist Party
of China majoring in management in party administration in December
1992. Furthermore, he completed and passed an advanced-level
course in risk investment and corporate finance organized by the
Continuing Education Department of Tsinghua University in March
2011.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 50, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of KB 1T(E1T)
ERAB R 7] (Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company Limited, being
its unofficial English translation), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, and responsible for market development, sales and
preliminary approval of new projects. He obtained a diploma in
economic from Xiamen University in June 1984.

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 35, joined the Group in November 2009. Mr.
Xu is currently the chief financial controller of the Group. He obtained
a graduation certificate in construction finance accounting from 4&
BEZESEHERER (Fujian Construction Vocational School, being
its unofficial English translation) in July 1998. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Xu worked as the accounts manager of a property developer in
Xiamen City for 5 years.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 33, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Zhang
is currently the marketing manager of the Group and responsible for
marketing affairs of the Group. He has more than three years’
experience in marketing area. Mr. Zhang obtained a diploma in
construction engineering and pricing management from Hebei
Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering in January 2008.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Company listed on the
Stock Exchange on 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing
financial guarantee, performance guarantee and advisory services
to SMEs in Hebei Province and Xiamen City of the PRC. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company'’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 132.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year. (2011: Nil)

USE OF PROCEEDS

As part of the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company issued 150,000,000 new
shares and alloted 235,000,000 existing shares being offered for
sale by way of placing (the “Placing”), a capitalization issue of
1,389,980,000 shares and a loan capitalisation issue of 10,000
shares. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
150,000,000 new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 each.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of
new shares under the Placing were approximately HK$25.7 million
(approximately RMB21 million). As disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Directors intended to use all net proceeds from the Placing received
by the Company for payment of the capital commitments of the Group
which fall due in or around December 2012 in relation to the purchase
of properties and construction of its the Hebei Property and the
Xiamen Property. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from
the Placing are set out in the section headed “Reasons for the Placing
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at the date of this report,
the net proceeds have been fully utilised as intended. The capital
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commitments of the Group in relation to the purchase of properties
and construction of the Hebei Property and Xiamen Property in
aggregate amounted to approximately RMB23.4 million as at
31 December 2012. Details of which are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
RMB155.1 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last four financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
the Prospectus, is set out on page 6 of this report. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements in this report.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the Group’s major customers is set out below:
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Percentage of total sales

HRHEEEEIL
Sales SHER
— the largest customer — RARP 11.73%
— the five largest customers combined — BAREFE&H 35.47%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers
share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xiao Li

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Chang Xi Min (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

In accordance with articles 83 to 85 of the Articles, Mr. Chang Xi
Min, Mr. Chen Xiao Li and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung will retire

by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmations from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence in accordance with rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rule
during the year and all independent non-executive Directors are still
being considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group (the “Senior Management”) are set out on pages 25 to
29 of this report

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from
1 December 2011 and will continue thereafter until terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract. Each of the
non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 December
2012. The letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on
the date of the letter of appointment and ending on 30 November
2013, and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum of three
years unless terminated by either party giving at least one month’s
notice in writing. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to its Articles.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, no Director
had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, and the
time devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also receive options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
held by the Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules are as follows:
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(a) Long positions in ordinary Shares of HK$0.01

each and underlying Shares

Name of
Directors

EEnR

Nature of
interests

BEME

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

(@) RERAEEINBITZE
BEREEEROZER

Number of
Shares held
FrERAEE

Number of
underlying Approximate
shares percentage of
(share issued
options) share capital
HBRG EHEBTRE
(BRE HE Z#Hoask

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam
(“Mr. Chang”) (Note 1)
skelE A ([REE]) (BHaE1)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
(“Mr. Pang”) (Note 1)
TXEBEA ([BhE]) (1)

Mr. Chen Xiao Li

(“Mr. Chen”) (Note 1)
BR/ANFISE 4 (TRRSEED) (ByaE1)

Notes:

Through a controlled
corporation
REHEEE R

Through a controlled
corporation
REHEEE R

Beneficial owner

BEamBEEA

1,024,716,000

1,024,716,000

1,024,716,000 Shares are registered in the name of Team King
Limited (“Team King”), which is legally and beneficially owned by
Capital Gain Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”) and
Best Access Holdings Group Limited (“Best Access”) as 92.69%
and 7.31% respectively. Capital Gain is legally and beneficially owned
by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang as 51% and 49% respectively. Under
the SFO, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang are deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Team King by virtue of Team King being controlled
by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain.

The interest in the share options constitutes a long position of the
Director in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of
the SFO.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,543,000,000 shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2012.

-

66.41

66.41

15,400,000 1.00
(Note 2)
(BrzE2)

1,024,716,000/% % 17 LA R B R A 7]
(D™B)) B&aEM - ZARDBIREER
BHEMR AT ([HE]) RBest Access
Holdings Group Limited ([Best Access])
BARBHREEI2.69%K7.31% - EF
DRBEEEERREESEZERESR
51%5%49% o REF REEHEMT -
PR ZEERRTERBREEES -

TR A RREEHERABNRNEIATIEE
MR 19 A R o

REEFRBEED - RZEBEES
ZREEBRZESNER LEARNRA
PTEIAZIFRE -

FZADHDERARRR T ——F+

—A=+-—BzEBTKRHEE
1,543,000,000/% Mzt & °
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(b) Long position in the Shares of associated
corporation

(b) REEEQXT RO Z2HFR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares held interest in
Name of in associated associated
Name of associated Nature of corporation corporation
Directors corporation interests = N T g N
EEpns BENRERW EEME ROBE HEEMOBIHL
Mr. Chang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69
R AE 7 (B ) corporation
REHEE R
Mr. Pang Team King (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69
s AN (B ) corporation
G EE R
Note: FIeE -

Team King is legally and beneficially owned as to 92.69% by Capital Gain
and as to 7.31% by Best Access. Capital Gain is legally and beneficially
owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

36

N> Bl S N Best AccessB A B R HA
92.69% K% 7.31% c mEN IR Z AL KKE
EEBEREBS51%K%49% °

%J:\X?ﬁ?g%% CTRZE-—ZF+ZA=+

BIEEEREETTBRABRAQE K
ﬁﬁ\fﬂ—ﬁﬁﬂawj&‘@ (EERBEHFLEBERG) 2
Bin - HEARMD REEZPHEEREESK
HEIEDIEXVIBETREDED - BMEARAR
MR 2 #E s (B IERIEE S LR GG
WEENEREBE 2R RXR) AR
155 N BB 65 58 35215 R 8 A % G 5 T
Rz B 2  SBEREAIERET
HRBIES. 46156 E5.67T IR G AN T R I AP
2R R

VPN
IR °



Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and
the Chief Executive, and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations (other
than the Directors and the Chief Executive) in the Shares or underlying
Shares which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly, to be
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group, were as follows:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

FERR

BESER&SITHABRA - WRERE T
WUEGFE s AR ARRRFE 2k
N—E——F+-A=1+—H BREZFI&K
BITEABIN - THIALEEEMNARG AE
BRNEEREBEES RAEEAEXVEE2

R3N 2 HEAMARRRIEE - HIREBE
%_‘&HH 5 167 22 33680 1 FE Bt B AR R &
it ﬁﬁ?ﬁif’aﬂ%ﬁéﬁ@ﬂE?ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘#‘%
BRI R ARRIIAEEE MK E QT
RERg LR ZEMBERIRMD @Tﬁ5%?
LA EREss -

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital
Name Nature of interests Shares held HEBITRA
EEHE EEME FrERAEE ZEBRNBEDE
Team King Beneﬂcial owner 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
N EREAA
Capital Gain Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
= corporation (Note 1)
REEE RS (B 7E1)
Mr. Pang Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
ThE corporation (Note 1)
REHEEER GER))
Mr. Chang Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
R AE corporation (Note 1)
EEHEEER (P EE1)
Best Access Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
corporation (Note 1)
Best Access ZIEHEE R (BF3E1)
Dr. Ma Chung Wo Cameron Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 (L) 66.41
(“Dr. Ma”) corporation (No\te 1)
BhRMmEE((FB8E] REHEEER (P &E1)
Joyful Promote Limited Beneficial owner 80,284,000 (L) 5.20
(“d Joyful Promote”) BEniEAA
EEBRRAR(EBED 50,000,000 (S) 3.24
r. So Chi Ming (“Mr. So”) Through a controlled 80,284,000 (L) 5.20
B E ([BEEE]D corporation (Note 2)
REHEE RS (P 7E2)
50,000,000 (S) 3.24
(Note 2)
CE#)

* (L) denotes long position
(S) denotes short position

VDR RER
SN/
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Notes:

13 These Shares are registered in the name of Team King, which is legally
and beneficially owned by Capital Gain and Best Access as 92.69% and
7.31% respectively. Capital Gain is legally and beneficially owned as to
51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang. Best Access is legally and
beneficially owned by Dr. Ma. Under the SFO, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang
are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King by virtue of
Team King being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital
Gain. Dr. Ma is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Team King
by virtue of Team King being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Access.

2. These Shares are registered in the name of Joyful Promote, the entire
issued share of which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. So. Under
the SFO, Mr. So is deemed to be interested in the Share held by Joyful
Promote.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 or Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Director’s interests
and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares or any
associated corporations” and in the Share Option Scheme disclosure
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group, the Company conditionally
adopted the Share Option Scheme on 1 December 2011 whereby
the Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
for the Shares to the Eligible Participant. The Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the Listing Date.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 140,000,000 Shares and
represents approximately 9.03% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible
Participant shall pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. The Option will be offered for acceptance
for a period of 28 days from the date on which the Option is granted.
The subscription price for the Shares subject to Options will be a
price determined by the Board and notified to each participant and
shall be the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the Options, which must be a day on which trading of Shares take
place on the Stock Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 Trading Days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.
For the purpose of calculating the subscription price, in the event
that on the date of grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock
Exchange for less than 5 Trading Days, the issue price shall be used
as the closing price for any Trading Day falling within the period before
the Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue from the Listing Date. The
Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes of the
Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In 2012, the Group has entered into the following transactions with
the following party, which is a connected person of the Company
upon the listing pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. These transaction
constitute continuing connected transactions which are exempt from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Tenancy agreements in relation to a Xiamen office

On 2 August 2009, Xiamen Da Sheng as tenant and Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan (“Ms. Ma”) as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement in
respect of a property (the “Property”) situated at Suites 23B and
23C, Office Tower, Zhongxin Huiyang Building, No. 59 Hubing Road
North, Xiamen, the PRC with an area of approximately 200 sqg. m.
for a term of three years commenced on 8 September 2009 and
expired on 7 September 2012. The annual rental payable by the
Group for the Property is approximately RMB84,000. On
7 September 2012, Xiamen Da Sheng and Ms. Ms Lee Kwan has
renewed the term of the tenancy agreement in respect of the Property
for another three years commenced from 8 September 2012 and
expiring on 7 September 2015 at the same annual rental amount of
approximately RMB84,000. The Property is currently being used by
the Group as its Xiamen office.

As Ms. Ma is the mother of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam and the wife of
Mr. Chang Xi Min, she is a connected person of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

Given that the rental payable by the Group in respect of the Property
is comparable and in line with prevailing market rates, the Group will
continue to lease the Property from Ms. Ma until completion of
construction of its Xiamen headquarter.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors, substantial
Shareholders and their respective associates is a director or a
shareholder of any business apart from the business of the Group
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Kingston Corporate Finance Limited to be
the Compliance Adviser. Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, being
the sponsor, has declared its independence pursuant to Rule 6A.07
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as provided for under the underwriting
agreement relating to the placing, neither Kingston Corporate Finance
Limited nor any of its associates and none of the directors or
employees of Kingston Corporate Finance Limited who have been
involved in providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or
may, as a result of the placing, have any interest in any securities of
the Company or any other companies of the Group (including options
or rights to subscribe for such securities).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Compliance Adviser’s appointment is for a period commencing
on the Listing Date and ending on the date on which the Company
complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of its
financial results for the second full financial year commencing after
the Listing Date, i.e. 31 December 2014, or until the agreement is
terminated, whichever is earlier.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 42
to 583 in this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 and 2012 were audited by the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”), BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as Auditor will be proposed
at the AGM.

By order of the Board
China Assurance Finance Group Limited
Pang Man Kin Nixon
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former CG
Code”) was revised and renamed as the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Revised CG Code”) on 1 April 2012, contained in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions of the Former CG Code for the period
from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and of the Revised CG Code
for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 except for
the deviations from code provision C.1.2 of the Revised CG Code
regarding the financial reporting as explained below:

Code provision C.1.2 of the Revised CG Code stipulates that
management should provide all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties under rule 5.01 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the management of the Company (the
“Management”’) has provided to all Directors quarterly updates with
quarterly consolidated financial statement of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details during the
regular Board meetings rather than providing monthly updates as
stipulated in the Revised CG Code. In addition, the management
has provided all Directors in a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and prospects of the Company.
As a good corporate governance practice, the Management will
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail in the coming future in order to
comply with the Revised CG Code.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices will be set out in the Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 December 2012.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings throughout the year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

and Vice Chairman
Executive Director
Non-executive Director and

Chairman of the Board
Independent non-executive

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon

Mr. Chen Xiao Li
Mr. Chang Xi Min

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Director

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung Independent non-executive
Director

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
in this report.

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website and the Company’s website (www.cafgroup.hk).

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

Board Meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve quarterly, interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. The Board held 13 meetings during the year ended
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31 December 2012. Individual attendance records of each Director
at the respective Board and committee meetings are set out in the
table on page 50 of this report.

Notices with agenda of the Board Meeting are duly given to each
Director. Minutes of the Board Meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and is open for inspection by any Directors.

If a Director has an interest in the resolutions to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the Board
will ensure the resolutions will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than written resolutions and the Board will also ensure
that an adequate number of independent non-executive Directors
are involved in the consideration of the relevant resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to take an
active role in Board meetings.

The Board and the Management of the Company

The Board and the management of the Company (the
“Management”) work together toward synergy in order to strive for
excellent performance of the Company. The Company is governed
by the Board, which is responsible for overseeing the overall strategy
and development of the Company, as well as monitoring the internal
control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the Group.
The Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group
with a view to developing its business and enhancing the
Shareholders’ value. The day to day management, administration,
operation of the Group and adoption of the Company’s strategies
and polices are delegated to the Management. The clear
responsibilities division between the Board and the Management
ensured the power and authority are balanced and not concentrated
in any one individual.

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors which representing more than one-third of the
Board, and with at least one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The independent non-executive Directors, together with
the executive Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial
and other mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
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standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
and believes that their independence is in compliance the Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Relationships between the Board

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, is the son of Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-
executive Director and the Chairman of the Board. Save for the
aforesaid, none of the Directors is related to one another.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional developments (the “Continuous Professional
Development”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the confirmation records provided by the Directors, all
the Directors have participated in Continuous Professional
Development for the year ended 31 December 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Developments in the
following manner:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

EEEMEB UM FERERE 2B
FRTEZNWRBREBULIE

ESEACEE

HWITESRAR R THARRINB LRI
HWITESREFQIRRAKTEZRT
B Lt ES  EFEZFEHMEELMEE -

EEZRHEEXRER

BMZBEE2EREEXER ([FEEX
BRI - DIRAME R BRI E 2 R S e
REEFRMHE I EARE  2RESIRE
E_T—_H+_A=t—HIEFERZH
SEEXER -

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HLFE =
E2HE T EEFEEXRR2EE -

Attending seminars/

Reading materials in courses/conferences
relation to Continuous in relation to Continuous
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Name HEERRESRER HEEBREEXREL
®E ZHH BHE RE/8F
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RE\E LA 0
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon ENBEE 0
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BRI O
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min REHLE 0
Independent non-executive Directors BV H#HTEE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BREEREAE 0
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung kB EE 0
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki HE2:9 3 0 0
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Chang Xi Min is currently the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam is currently the Chief Executive Officer. In
accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the Revised CG Code,
the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and exercised by different person.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board has taken primary
responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from
1 December 2011 and will continue thereafter for successive terms
of one year unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service contract.

Non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company on 1 December 2012. The letter of appointment for
each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors is for an initial term of one year unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment,
and shall continue for period as agreed between the parties in writing.

In accordance with the articles 84 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee in order to maintain
high level of corporate governance standard of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision B.1.1 of the Revised CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Pang Man
Kin Nixon, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chan Kai Wing (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all the Directors and Senior Management,
to review performance based remuneration and to ensure none of
the Directors determine their own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee determined the policy
for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed the
performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Directors’ services contracts. The Remuneration
Committee adopted the model which is described in the code
provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Revised CG Code, it makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2012. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Remuneration committee are set out in the table on page 50
of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on
1 December 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
code provision A.4.5 of the Revised CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chang Hoi
Nam, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kai Wing and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (chairman of the
Nomination Committee).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, to access
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

During the year, the Nomination Committee determined the policy
for the nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for identifying potential directors, reviewing the
credentials of the potential director base on his/her qualifications,
skills, experience, credibility and reputation. Once the Nomination
Committee confirmed the potential director(s) is/are qualified to be
the Director(s) and his/her appointments are in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole, it will make
recommendations to the Board for approval. The director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first
general meeting after his/her appointment and shall be subject to
re-election by the Shareholders at the such meeting.

The director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and shall be
subject to re-election by the shareholders of the Company at such
meeting.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2012. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table on page 50 of
this report.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing, Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan
Kai Wing. These consolidated annual results for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the members of the Audit
Committee who have provided advices and comments thereon.

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the
Revised CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung
and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor as well as approval on their
remuneration and terms of engagement; review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of the financial reporting;
and oversee financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Company.

The Audit Committee has been met its responsibilities to review the
Group’s quarterly reports, interim report and the audited annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and provided advice
and comments thereon.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2012. Individual attendance records of each member
of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page 50 of this
report.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the meetings of the
Board and its respective committees during the year ended 31
December 2012 are as follows:

ESERHFETR

BET——F+-HA=1T—HLEFE £
EREESRHESBZES 2 HEFNEN
N

Nomination Remuneration Audit  Extraordinary
Board  Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to Eligible to
attend attend attend attend attend
Ezg RAZEE HMZERE  BHZRe
EE ] EE g3 g% RRBNAE
Name of Director Note Bk Btk BHE/ EHE/ Btk
Ezg it REKLE  REKNR  RERERE  REREE  SERLE
Executive Directors HAES
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RolmEL 1013 17 17 34 0
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon TXBEE 13/13 1 17 4/4 17
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BRI 313 0N 0N 1/4 0N
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chang Xi Min REBEE 3/13 0 0/ 1/4 0/
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUF#H7TEE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing RERLE 1113 17 17 4/4 17
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung WKELE 913 1N 17 3/4 0/1
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 5 29 11113 1/1 1/1 44 0
Corporate Governance Function I EERBEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties in accordance with code provision D.3.1 to the Revised CG
Code, which are included to develop and review the Company
policies and practices on corporate governance, to review and
monitor the training and the Continuous Professional Development
of Directors and Senior Management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Revised CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

50

ESRARREEETEXERTAZTA
X FEDIMFEITERERME - BRE%
EEBHARRERERAZHREER &
BREREERSRERE IS ER
XER  AMENREERE ZANRARRE
KRER - BHARRETRETEEERT
Al2BRAREREAREZHE -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, remuneration paid and
payable to the Auditor are approximately HK$500,000 for audit
services and HK$NIl for non-audit services respectively.

Directors’ Acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations.

The Audit Committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2012. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of internal controls by considering the reviews
performed by the Audit Committee and the management.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Ms. Man Tsz Sai Lavender (“Ms. Man”) as
the Company Secretary since 1 December 2011. She is an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and she has over
14 years’ experience in corporate secretarial practice. In accordance
with the Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rule, Ms. Man has taken no
less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

The primary corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. Pang
Man Kin, Nixon, the executive Director and the Vice Chairman of the
Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

52

DNEWE

XE#ENMA (MDD R=ZF—F+=A
—HREARRZTALTWE - BAHES
BFWEAE REBRFTWERITBRAER
288 AHEB4FRERARMETREE
K85 o IRIRAIZER ETARAISE5.150% - &
E-T——F+-_A=1t—HIFE )
HE2ERN D15/ 2 BB EE -

ARBZEBRARBBAREXRERE (B
TEEREFSEERF) -

ESER
BREREBABRREFNAS ZERF

RIBZEIRAMBNEL8M5 - EA—BHNZRNE
2ERZ ARFHE TP RMHERARFIRE
RERREZRNRBHERE+ D2 —2 K&
R RNEARRSEEEBNEETERAR
AMEBHLERZR  EXEEFSARRR
FRlRE » ERIBBBE kPR ERE
15

ZAEENEZZEREMQ)MEARNETT -
MR BEBEZE _+T—QCNBA  EFEK
ERAZARE  BEZ2ERALTABITUME
RARBEAE  MARRAREZERA
TEMNAEHEZERATEEZSREE
HAEMELAZAEMRY -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

PROCEDURES FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
THEIR ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@cafgroup.hk or by mail to the principle
address of the Company at Units 03-05, 17/F., K. Wah Centre, 191
Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong. All the enquiries are dealt with
in timely manner. The Shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the AGM and extraordinary general meetings (the “EGM”) of the
Company and to put their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices
are duly being circulated to the Shareholders in order to ensure each
Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM and the EGM. The
Chairman of the Board, chairmen of each of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and the
Senior Management attend the aforesaid meetings and respond to
the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the proxy forms and
will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and EGM orally in the
beginning of the aforesaid meetings.

INVESTEOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to the
Shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective communication platform
to the public and the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there had not been any
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
A

EEE : +8522218 8288
{2H : +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 132,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Joanne Y.M. Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05419
Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_ZT——_F+-_A=+—HILLFE

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBTT
Revenue W 25 8 23,987 45,108
Other income H A A 8 2,481 764
Administrative and operating expenses 17 & & 3& i &% (15,586) (10,600)
Listing expenses EmHX (3,633) (8,274)
Equity-settled shared-based VAR 17 B BB 5K
payment expenses (ABRA&EH) 28 (11,571) 8
(Loss)/Profit before income tax e Al (B8 aFl 9 (4,322) 26,998
Income tax expense FriSBif 11 (4,515) (9,456)
(Loss)/Profit for the year NEE (BB, &F (8,837) 17,542
Other comprehensive income His2mEUas
Exchange gain on translation HIIZIMNSE E R
of financial statements MK 2
of foreign operations bE W, 2 (109) 4,975
Total comprehensive income AEZEE2HEKE
for the year 438 (8,946) 22,517
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{5 A4 (E518) % F)
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIEZ PN (9,486) 16,174
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR E 2R 649 1,368
(8,837) 17,542
Total comprehensive income JElE2EK =B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ PN (9,595) 21,149
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 4 2 649 1,368
(8,946) 02,517
(Loss)/Earnings per share — Basic Zk (BB &
(RMB cent(s)) — EX(AR®ED) 14 (0.62) 1.16
(Loss)/Earnings per share — Diluted ~ &B% (E518) /& T
(RMB cent) — E(ARED) 14 062  N/ATEA
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2 A b Q)
N TS E
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_T——F+-A=+—HIEFE
2012 2011
—EB-=F —F——%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR® T AREFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WE K& 15 70,874 44,743
Land use rights T Hb {5 A A 16 37,218 36,035
Deposits paid [RENEi & 18 25,452 27,816
133,544 108,594
Current assets RBEE
Account receivables JE UL BR X 19 21,466 22,804
Prepayments and deposits paid ENFERENIES 7,593 3,671
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITFER 20 47,389 43,300
Restricted bank deposits ZRHRITER 21 14,411 7,300
Cash and cash equivalents BehkFSFMEEE 22 4,002 3,768
94,861 80,843
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, other payables FEETER - HER
and deferred income FIE K IR AE WA 23 24,337 16,857
Amounts due to shareholders FE A AR R 3R IE 24 - 108,300
Current tax liabilities BEAf B & & 6,765 11,727
31,102 136,884
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (AR FHE 63,759 (56,041)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBEBABERE 197,303 52,553
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE 25 - —
Net assets EEFRE 197,303 52,553
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners EARERA
of the Company LR
Share capital EEN 26 12,539 =
Reserves {1 27(a) 177,741 46,179
190,280 46,179
Non-controlling interests FEBRELS 7,023 6,374
Total equity EEEEE 197,303 52,553

On behalf of the Board
RERESE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam GGRS\EE 5t 4)
Director (£ %)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (& X B %&£ 4)

Director (£ %)
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As at 31 December 2012
R—ZZE—=—F+=-RA=+—H

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——4%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIEE 17 51,110 51,110
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE B B A Rl ZR IR 17 128,521 =
Prepayments B FRIR - 744
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREFMEIEE 151 —
128,672 744
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B R & H th 1 5RI8 840 3,540
Amount due to a subsidiary AR PNGIE S 17 - 5,258
840 8,798
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AR RFE 127,832 (8,054)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZABERAEBERE
and net assets REEFE 178,942 43,056
EQUITY s
Share capital LN 26 12,539 —
Reserves BEfs 27(b) 166,403 43,056
Total equity A 178,942 43,056

On behalf of the Board
REREZS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (GRSl @ % &)

Director (£ %)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S AN 3L 4
mEEREFHR
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HItEE
Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
ARRERAREES FEREE  EREE
Share Share
capital  premium Share
(note 26) (note 27(d))  Exchange option  Retained
RE  RHEE  reserve  reserve profits Total
(Wskoe) (WiFrd) EXGE BRERE REEN Rt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2011 “E——E-f-H - - 5,564 - 19,466 25,030 6,006 31,036
Dividend paid to non-controlling Wl B2 & 2 AR ES
interests of a subsidiary X RE — BEFA
— Transactions with owners ~~ #177% % - - - - - - (1,000) (1,000)
Profit for the year KEE ST - - - - 16,174 16,174 1,368 17,542
Other comprehensive income A EEMZENE
for the year - - 4,975 - - 4,975 - 4,975
Total comprehensive income  AEE 2 AMFEE
for the year - - 4,975 - 16,174 21,149 1,368 22517
At 31 December 2011 RZB—F+ZA=+-H
and 1 January 2012 k=E-—E-f-H - - 10,539 - 35,640 46,179 6,374 52,553
Shareholder loan capitalisation ~ RRE#BA( - 108,300 - - - 108,300 - 108,300
Issue of shares under REZHRTRG
Restructuring Exercise 11,295 (11,295) - - - - - -
lssue of shares in RARZER
public offering, net Bk 58 1,219 31,070 - - - 32,269 - 32,269
Equity-settled share-based R R BEERR
payment granted (AREEE) - - - 11,571 - 11,51 = 11,51
Exercise of share options TiEERE 25 1,742 - (231) - 1,536 - 1,536
Transaction with owners BEARS 12,539 129,817 = 11,340 - 153,696 - 153,696
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - pd%6)  (9,480) 649 (3837)
Other comprehensive income ~ AEE M2 AME
for the year - - (109) - - (109) - (109)
Total comprehensive income  AFE2ERRAE
forthe year - - (109) - (948)  (9,595) 649 (3946
At 31 December 2012 ZE-CE+CZA=1-H 12,539 129,817 10,430 11,340 26,154 190,280 7,023 197,303
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE_ZT——_F+-_A=+—HILLFE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities ZE&EZBHERE
(Loss)/Profit before income tax FS®ial (B18) & 5 (4,322) 26,998
Adjustments for: PR
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE K
plant and equipment Bl SE i 9 - 1
Amortisation for land use rights 3t {5 PR R 8 9 796 754
Depreciation of property, WE - BE R
plant and equipment RETE 9 1,265 431
Bank interest income RITHBUA 8 (2,133) (764)
Equity-settled share-based AR HE 4 B BB AR A
payment expenses NRFAX 9 11,571 —
Operating profit before working LEESEHF 2
capital changes &E/ﬁﬁ ol 7,177 27,420
Decrease/(Increase) in account FEURBR TR A (38 h0)
receivables, net of deferred income OB I AT U A 5,639 (12,037)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments  FEfI KB R 2 RS
and deposits paid (gm md (3,922) 89
Increase in pledged bank deposits EEERITFEIE N (4,089) (3,079)
Increase in restricted bank deposits = BR R 77 17 218 AN (7,111) (7,300)
Increase in accruals and St B R R AR
other payables FRIEIE N 3,179 10,600
Net cash generated from operations &ZEFELE 2RSS F5E 873 15,693
Interest received 2 U F B 2,133 764
Income tax paid B FREH (9,477) (4,846)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &&E8 (FiA) B4
operating activities ZHEEFRE (6,471) 11,611
Cash flows from investing activities REZE2HERE
Purchases of property, HWEWE
plant and equipment 5B K 5% 15 (24,121) (19,081)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEE - FE M
plant and equipment HEcBE RS 18 (1,952) (798)
Payments for land use rights A i 5 R AE 16 (938) —
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWME - HEM
plant and equipment REERIE - 197
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFFACEEEHE (27,011) (19,682)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

> A =
mEEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BHE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HItEE

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T ARBTT

Cash flows from financing activities BEEZE2HERE
Net proceeds from issue of BTG

new shares FRIEFRE 32,289 —
Decrease in amounts due JRE < A% 3R 3R TR

to shareholders - (17,763)
Net proceeds from exercise of ITIERE RS

share options B FER 1,536 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEZBEL (FTH)

financing activities ZEEBE 33,825 (17,763)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBREEEEHR

and cash equivalents Z2Em, (Rd) B8 343 (25,834)
Effect of foreign exchange IEERSH CHETE

rate changes, net (109) 4,975
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HBZzEER

at 1 January ReZEEHEE 3,768 24,627
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—A=+—-HBz2

at 31 December BeRREZEEEHR 4,002 3,768
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The registered office of
the Company is the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Capital Gain
Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”), a limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 were approved by the board of directors
on 20 March 2013.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION
(a) Basis of presentation

Pursuant to a group restructuring exercise (the
“Restructuring Exercise”) carried out by the Group to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Company became the holding company
of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.
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B ISR M

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of presentation (continueq)

The Group resulting from the Restructuring Exercise is
regarded as a continuing entity as it involved combinations
of entities under common control, which were controlled
directly or indirectly by Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (“Mr.
Pang”), Mr. Chang Hoi Nam (“Mr. Chang”) and Dr. Ma
Chung Wo Cameron (“Dr. Ma”) (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) under a contractual arrangement
immediately before and after the Restructuring Exercise.
The Company and Hero Praise Limited (“Hero Praise”)
are regarded as a continuation of Aurora Logistics Capital
Assurance Limited (“ Aurora Capital Assurance”) and its
interests in the subsidiaries now comprising the Group
resulting from the Restructuring Exercise since all of the
companies which took part in the Restructuring Exercise
were controlled by the Controlling Shareholders before
and immediately after the Restructuring Exercise.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been
prepared by adopting the merger basis of accounting.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective terms include all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and applicable Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION

(Continued)
(c) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The significant
accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

3.1 Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs —
first effective on 1st January 2012

Amendments to Severe Hyper Inflation and
HKFRS 1 Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters
Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers
HKFRS 7 of Financial Assets
Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery
HKAS 12 of Underlying Assets

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Groups’s financial statements.

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continueq)

Amendments to Presentation of Iltems
HKAS 1 (Revised) of Other Comprehensive
Income’
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets
HKAS 32 and Financial Liabilities®
Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets
HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities?
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financia
statements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial
Statements?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

66

(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continueq)

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncements. Information on new
or amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below.
Certain other new or amended HKFRSs have been issued
but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group
to separate items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that may be reclassified to profit and
loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-sale
financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations
of property, plant and equipment). Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the
same basis. The amendments will be applied
retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective continuea)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Under the standard, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for de-recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

68

(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (continueq)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use
the power over the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS
10 contains extensive guidance on the assessment of
control. For example, the standard introduces the concept
of “de facto” control where an investor can control an
investee while holding less than 50% of the investee’s
voting rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to give
it power over the investee. Potential voting rights are
considered in the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to
exercise them. The standard explicitly requires an
assessment of whether an investor with decision making
rights is acting as principal or agent and also whether
other parties with decision making rights are acting as
agents of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on
behalf of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implantation of HKFRS 10 may
result in changes in those entities which are regarded as
being controlled by the Group and are therefore
consolidated in the financial statements. The accounting
requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other
consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject
to certain transitional provisions.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

3.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective «continuea)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces new
disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by
other standards. The standard applies to both financial
and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The
definitions of the three levels in this measurement hierarchy
are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value
as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in
an active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask
spread that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial
statements to assess the methods and inputs used in
measuring fair values and the effects of fair value
measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13
can be adopted early and is applied prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these pronouncements. The
directors of the Company so far concluded that the
application of these new pronouncements will have no
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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4. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 4.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
primary economic environment in which the principal
subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”) unless otherwise stated.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation

70

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year (if any) are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation continueq)

Except for those acquisitions which qualify as common
control combination, which are accounted for using
merger accounting, acquisition of subsidiaries or business
is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation (continueq)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed

of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able
to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are

taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 9.

(Continued)

FESHBEHRE @)

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets 5.2 FEeREERE

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(*CGU’s”) value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the year
in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the year in which it arises.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.3 Property, plant and equipment

74

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-
in-progress (“CIP”), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment,
other than CIP, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Buildings
Furniture, fixtures

and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

20 years
3 to 5 years

3 to 5 years or over the
lease term whichever is
the shorter

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful

lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is de-recognised and is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

9.3 Property, plant and equipment continueq)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

CIP which mainly represents property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct and indirect costs incurred during
the periods of construction, installation and testing. When
the assets concerned are completed and ready for use,
the costs are reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment.

5.4 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.4 Leases (continued)

76

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on straight-line method over the term of the
lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

5.5 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of capital
are deducted from capital (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extend they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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B ISR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.6 Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the instruments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are initially recognised at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (continued)
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Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

5.7 Financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include accruals and other
payables and amounts due to shareholders.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value, net of directly attributable transaction
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

80

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

5.9 Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.10Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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(Continued)

9.11Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from financial guarantee (as the case may
be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised over
the contract period on a time apportionment basis;

(b) income from performance guarantee (as the case
may be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of performance guarantee) is recognised
and determined using the percentage of completion
method. The percentage of completion is calculated
by comparing the good supplied or services
rendered by the Group’s customers to total
contracted amount with third parties;

() income from standalone advisory services is
recognised when the services are rendered, and

(d) interest income is calculated on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

5.12Employee henefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.12Employee benefits (continuea)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of employees’
salaries to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

5.13 Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in
share option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number
of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted. As
long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is not
adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

5. FESFTHERBE »)

sREEREA @)

REBERPEARKLME ([

B &E@EsMBARETREER
/AmﬁﬁMHmﬁﬁg@Z$
SRR EEl - BEMBARA
Eﬁ%%%%?ﬁnmﬂ¢%ﬁ
REeFHEIHNK -

HHRNFEANRBRHRGRHE
SRR RN - NEBREZ
Sz EEERENEERS
4t

FH?}

BEBRENReENAEEEERN
BREFERFTEI B BB %ETE
MEDAEN  WHRBRRS
WILEAS AR BB MR
BAIE - 78 T LARER o

R B E# 2R

ERESEDERER - AL
HEZ BIRE AN T ETIREE S
REEEREAER - WA =T E
WRIERBIGMEESEE - EMS
GBRMTEAFAERHENS®H
¢WX§FZ%¥IEZ@HW
UL REERBHERER
Zf%pﬁr RIBERRKRERBEZ
BIREZE Mt E - MimHBIK
Bt AR ERE 2 AT (E -
REMAHMBB IR EER -
AN mmism B Gt R EEK
EETIRAX o RETAX T g
*ﬁkmmﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂg°

ANRE R 2 RN R IR E LR
BRTRIE DR - EEREL BN
K& 2 BB N FEIER T & &
HTREBHENBRERAER -

83



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M A

9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

5.13 Share-based payments (continueq)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other
than employees and others providing similar services, the
fair value of goods or services received is recognised in
profit or loss unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. A corresponding increase in equity
is recognised. For cash-settled share based payments, a
liability is recognised at the fair value of the goods or

services received.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of an directly attributable transaction costs
up to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits.

5.14 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity

operates (the “functional currency”).
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

9.14 Foreign currencies (Continued)

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve in equity.
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(Continued)

9.15Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

0)

(il

)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0)

(il

86

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
9.15Related parties (continueq)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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9. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

88

9.16 Financial guarantee contracts (continueq)

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy on “Provisions and
contingent liabilities”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on “Revenue Recognition”.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the corresponding liability.

5.17Performance guarantee contracts

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts in
which the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its
customers who entered into contracts with third parties
for services to be rendered or goods to be supplied within
an agreed time period. Performance guarantee contracts
issued by the Group are classified as insurance contracts
under HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” as under the
contracts the Group has accepted significant insurance
risk from the counterparties by agreeing to compensate
the counterparties if a specified uncertain future event
adversely affects the counterparties. These performance
guarantee contracts are in general of short duration of
less than one year.

5.

FESHBEBE @)

516 BIEIRREN &)

AEBBEL AW REERAFE
FAABRZBERERAOTIAR
FEREEREBHEITREER
BRZRZRAFTHER - 912
HBRE  NEBNANVEREREREER
FABBLRIARBE] 285K
REEZE8 » &)V ZHER
TRERE(WER) REASEA
B [ an AR | 2 BUR M HERR 2 B
AHEH RS EHEEREER
BHEITEE -

HAKEZEHBERER  ERZ
BHRERVTHERRELERA -

HWERMERC W HEITHE
RS BREY - AIREASEE
%K%ﬁ%m%Zﬁ”tﬁﬁ
R MEMEZESHNERACDK
@&f% BB B S S 1R 4 20 R
REFERERNESENER -

517 BHIEREN

AEBBETEROERALD B
AEBRER/EZP N7 E M
BAR FREZRENHEZE
mBE=ZTRIEZAH - RHE
R BZEAK  AEEDEB
W E B4 E NEE 2 RREHHE
RRAEE T AR ER - BRE T
87 BEEEYTZEARER
B MR EAEBBITZBHE
TR ISIR & 78 B 15 s 2R RI 26 45%
[REEA KD BARBER - %
FROERAN—RRREE &
WEMIBEE—F -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR M

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

9.17Performance guarantee contracts

(Continued)

Where the Group issues a performance guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. The contracted fee of the performance
guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
recognised as revenue in profit or loss based on
percentage of the guaranteed performance delivered over
the period of risk according to the relevant performance
guarantee issued. The proportion of contracted fees
deferred represents the Group’s recognised insurance
liability.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether its
recognised insurance liability is adequate with reference
to the estimated net contractual obligations under all
outstanding performance guarantee contracts. The
contractual obligation is estimated using the current
estimate of all contractual future cash flows under the
outstanding insurance contracts and of related cash flows
with available information. When the assessment shows
that the carrying amount of deferred income as the
Group’s recognised insurance liability is inadequate, the
entire amount of shortfall is recognised to increase the
Group’s insurance liability and charged to profit or loss of
the year when the shortfall is identified.

5.18 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
5.18 Segment reporting (continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
to be affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU to
which the asset is allocated. Estimating value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated future
cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.

(iii) Estimated useful lives of property, plant

and equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is made based on
the experience of the Group with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised if the
estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, based on changes in circumstances.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
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(iv) Estimation of provision for financial

(v)

guarantee and performance guarantee
issued

Management reviews the creditworthiness of its
customers and re-assesses the fair value of collaterals of
individual customers for financial guarantee and
performance guarantee issued by the Group from time to
time. The best evidence of fair value of collaterals is current
prices in an active market for similar collaterals in the same
location and condition. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of
source including public accessible sources, such as
internet searches, recent transaction prices, statistics on
recent market development and market quote. If the
management consider the financial conditions of the
Group’s customers deteriorate or the customers would
default in payment or contracts, provisions will be made
and the amount is based on the exposure which is the
maximum guarantee amounts less the value of the
collaterals.

Stage of completion of performance
guarantee contracts

Revenue from performance guarantee contracts is
recognised according to the percentage of completion of
individual performance guarantee contract. The
percentage of completion is calculated by comparing the
good supplied or service rendered by the Group’s
customers to total contracted amount with third parties.
In order to ensure that the percentage of completion of
performance guarantee contracts is accurate and up-to-
date, management frequently reviews and estimates the
progress of the goods supplied or service rendered by
the Group’s customers.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(vi) Stage of completion of standalone
advisory services

Revenue from standalone advisory services is recognised
according to the percentage of completion of advisory
services. Revenue recognition on an uncompleted
advisory service is dependent on estimating the total work
to be performed of the advisory contract, as well as the
work done to date. In order to ensure that the percentage
of completion of advisory services is accurate and up-to-
date, management frequently reviews and estimates the
progress of the advisory services rendered based on their
past experience and the nature of the advisory service
provided by the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of
the internal management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in
order to allocate resources and assess performance of the
segment. Executive directors have determined that the Group
has only one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the provision of financial
guarantee service, performance guarantee service and advisory
services which is the basis to allocate resources and assess
performance. The Group’s revenue from external customers is
divided into three groups of products which are disclosed in
note 8.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group’s principal place of operation is in the PRC. For the
purpose of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8,
the Group regards the PRC as its country of domicile. All the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets are principally
attributable to the PRC, being the single geographical region.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. Total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only the
following customers with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue. During the year ended 31
December 2012, revenue derived from these customers is as
follows:

THEER &)

Bzt Ig i AR T 2 R
E o MBEPZWGERBEIERATF
o

ARERFHAH - EOENTRS
BBAEERE10%2FF - BE=
- —Ft-A=+—HLFE &
BRERP 2B ¢

2012 2011

—E-—C—F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Customer A Z2EA 2,814 n/a T~ i@ A

n/a: Sales to Customer A did not exceed 10% of the Group’s revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2011. For the year ended 31
December 2011, there was no customer with whom transaction
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

TER: FAEPAHELEBLAEEH
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8. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the income from provision of
guarantee and advisory services. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

2 B E A I A

MASBEX2EBME W - 7R 8D
REB L% BREHRERKE
FREZBA - HE_ZT——F+=
A=+ BLHFEERRZUERE

follows: MU AL T -
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Revenue &
Income from financial guarantee B & FER WA 13,535 7,788
Income from performance BRI FER A
guarantee 10,452 32,520
Income from standalone 8 3 BE S R A A
advisory services - 4,800
23,987 45,108
Other income H g A
Bank interest income |ITHF B WA 2,133 764
Foreign exchange gain, net SNEW AR - SRR 348 —
2,481 764
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FrB%iA (B5H) & F
(Loss)/Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: FTiSBLAT (B518) & AR F0BR LA 18
BgEH :
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN EN & 442 747
Depreciation of property, W - BE K
plant and equipment RIETE 1,265 431
Amortisation for land use rights = th {8 FH 4 1 £ 796 754
Employee benefit expenses RERARAX
(including directors’ (BRESEHE
remuneration (note 10)) (BF7E10))
Salaries and wages HEeRkIE 3,552 2,569
Pension scheme contributions iRk & 5+ 3t 3
— Defined contribution plans — FEREHENRETE 232 277
Equity-settled share-based VARR AR 3 B ZE 3R
payment to employees (LARA&EE) TEE
(including a director) (BIEES) 5,631 —
9,415 2,846
Equity-settled share-based VARR AR B B ZEA 3R
payment to eligible persons (ABRA&E) TE=7
other than employees (T"BREEE)
and directors 5,940 —
Foreign exchange loss, net HNECRE W B 1R R R - 38
Loss on disposal of property, LEME  BE R
plant and equipment B BB = 1
Operating lease charges IEY = kS
in respect of properties HEZEHA 1,004 1,148
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10. EEMEREEHEEH M
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AL
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEEH =
Other than Mr. Pang who appointed on 10 March 2011, BRELER_TE——F=A+H
all other directors were appointed on 1 December 2011. LA 2RAMEFHINC
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2011: T——F+_-_A—HEZT - 7%
7) directors were as follows: BEECE——F 7R 2B
JERT B2 & T AT -

Year ended BE-E-CF

31 December 2012 tZB=t-ALEE
Executive directors: HiTEE

Mr. Pang e

Mr. Chang REE

Ms. Chen Xiao Li [ UN
Non-executive directors: FHTEE :

Mr. Chang Xi Min REHLE
Independent BUFHITES

non-executive directors:

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu HkELE

Cheung

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Bk 29

Mr. Chan Kai Wing REREE
Total ait
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

98

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

10. EEME R T B H S HEN

AT @

(@) ESME @

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share-based scheme
Fees in kind payments contributions Total
e Rl NRhAEE Rife
fikia REDHE fRUARKEE) LS At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET L ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET L
Year ended HE S——F
31 December 2011 T-A=+-BIt5E
Executive directors:; HITEE
Mr. Pang TrE - 489 - 7 496
Mr. Chang REE - 549 - 7 556
Ms. Chen Xiao LI BRI E - 25 - - 2
- 1,063 - 14 1,077
Non-executive directors: FHTEE :
Mr. Chang Xi Min RAELE 8 - - - 8
Independent BUFHITES:
non-executive directors:
Mr, Lam Raymond Shiu kB RE
Cheung 8 - - - 8
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki REELE 8 - - - 8
Mr. Chan Kai Wing REREE 8 - - - 8
24 - - - 24
Total Rt 32 1,063 - 14 1,109
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continuea)

10. EEME R T B H S HIN
AL @)

(b) EEESHFMAL

HE-ZT——-—F+-A=+—H
IEFE  AEEBRAZSHHA
THBERE-—REE(CE——F
—&) EME&ERME10@)F
Bk o

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
one director for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
two) whose emoluments are reflected in note 10(a).

Analysis of the emolument of the remaining four highest HE-_T——-—F+=-A=+—H

paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2012 IHEE  pHESNR (2T ——

(2011: three), who are senior management is as follows: F:ZR)EaFMALTISRE
BAE T

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETFT

Salaries, allowances e RUEREYN=R
and benefits in kind 237 653

Equity-settled share-based  LAR% 7 4 & A% 17

payment expenses BERNRHAZ 4,158 —
Defined contribution plans 284t Z 5t 2 17 17
4,412 670

RAFE  BEESRE=H
EENEXREHETMAME (=
T——F : E) c AEBEWERT
HEZTHAERTHATZIAHE
(ZE2E—F M) EREENMA
HRMARE B 2 52E) - skiE
BEEEZREE -

During the year, no director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
(2011: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the highest paid individuals of the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil).

99



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M A

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

10. EEMERERR
AL @@

b) EEEEHMAL @

= % A

ENENEREEARZFHMH

management were within the following bands: HISLOT -
2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——F
No. of senior No. of senior
management management
SREEBAE SHEREAB
#E B
Nil to HK1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 3 6
HK$1,000,001 1,000,0017%& 7T
to HK$2,000,000 % 2,000,000/ 7T 3 =
6 6
1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FIEHEX
2012 2011
—E--F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Current tax — PRC ENEARE TR — P
— Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT")  — G¥AEH (DEMREH]) 4,515 9,256
— Withholding income tax — BHMER - 950
Deferred tax (Note 25) EIERIE (HI5E25)
— Withholding income tax — FEHIFEH = (750)
4,515 9,456

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

TEHEBREMEEFRAR

M. IBFHEX @

ZE-FFR

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong during the year (2011: Nil).

EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2012
was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits
during the year (2011: 25%).

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding income
tax is levied on the foreign investor for the dividends distributed
out of the profits generated by the foreign investment
enterprises. The Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate
is 5%. No withholding income tax during the year as there are
no dividends distributed by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ARNFARSEY BELRNEELZ
T RERBTWA - BRI EBEF S
MEE (T ——F | o

REBEZE-_ZE——F+=ZA=+—H1t
FE  RAPBEECPEMRSHIE
BFERNIEETERBRA Z225%E (=
T——1%F :25%) °

RIBFPEDEMENE - HINERE
ERBIMRERRELE 28 M0k
ZERERBERBHMEN - AEE
EAZEMFAEHRRER5% - AR
SEZTEMBARLES KR
HFE AW EIBHPTSH -

BAEREABEZERAEHA (B
18) 8 F 2 RSB X IR E R B X
AEZAERA CHERET

2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBTT
(Loss)/Profit before income tax ~ FT5Fi A1 (B18) /&% 7 (4,322) 26,998
Tax at EIT rate ROEEMBHEZHIEA (1,080) 6,750
Effect of non tax-deductible EE -7
expenses 5,516 2,506
Tax effect of tax losses RERBIEEE BB E
not recognised 79 =
Withholding tax on dividend BB~ RN ER AR B 2 TR FR I8
received by a subsidiary - 950
Reversal of withholding tax BERDIREFN 2 FENTIE
on undistributed earnings - (750)
Income tax expense TS8R 2 4,515 9,456
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12.

13.

14.

102

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year (2011: Nil).

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of
RMB17,810,000 (2011: RMB 8,054,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB9,486,000 (2011: profit of RMB 16,174,000) and
the weighted average number of 1,538,131,000
(2011:1,390,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year,
assuming that 1,390,000,000 shares issued pursuant to the
reorganisation had been in issue throughout both years.

Diluted (loss)/earnings are the same as basic (loss)/earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 as the impact
of the potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding has an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share presented
for the year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented for the year ended
31 December 2011 as the Group had no potential ordinary
shares for the year.

12.

13.

14.

iz 2

REEA  RNRAFYEXNHE KK
RCERE——F &) -

v

BRREMLER

[EREMEEBSERARRTBERE
REEABARE17,810,000C (ZE—
— % AR#8,054,0007T) & %8 o

B (&8 &R

BREXR (B8  BAZFEHER
RARIBEEABEEEOARK
9,486,000 (ZE——%F : @A AR
#16,174,0007T0) * ARARFEE %7
1,538,131,000/% L i@A% (=T ——4F :
1,390,000,0008%) 2 I - &
#%1,390,000,0000% B 21715 BRI
BHERZMERET -

MR MARBET 2 BERELTBRE A
FEZBRER (BB) BFEKR
BEYE WEHE-_T——F+-A8
=+—HLLFE &% (&8 &F
HEERERN (BB B —%-

R AN E Y EEITEEE AN
EE-T-——Ft+-_A=t—Hi1
FEXEZF|SRETRF -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

TEHEBREMEEFRAR

ZE-FFR

15. 1% - MERRZE — &

GROUP 55
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor Leasehold Construction
Building  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
B £B HENE
BT REAZERME "E #% EEIR &t
RMB'00 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFL  ARBFR  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARB®Fn  AREFx
Cost: B
At 1 January 2011 W-E——F—-F—H - 112 1,031 662 24,808 26,613
Additions NE - 87 451 - 18,543 19,081
Disposals HE - - (279 - - (279)
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2012 hZE-—F—-A—H - 199 1,203 662 43,351 45,415
Additions NE 831 1,405 2,902 2,902 16,119 24,121
Transferred from deposit E#& 52 1% 4 (H318)
paid (note 18) 2477 - = 798 — 3,275
Disposals HeE - 4 = = = (4
At 31 December 2012 ~E-—£+-fA=+-H 3,308 1,600 4,067 4,362 59,470 72,807
Accumulated 2itiE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——F-A—A = 42 169 11 - 322
Charged for the year $¢l§$ﬂ b - 45 165 221 = 431
Write back on disposals £ $4 - - (81) - - (81)
At 31 December 2011 W_i——¢+ A=t+-H
and 1 January 2012 ——%-A-H - 87 253 332 = 672
Charged for the year ZKEFE£$D$% 120 289 501 355 = 1,265
Write back on disposals 1% B4 34 - (4) - - - 4
At 31 December 2012 R-F——4+-A=+—H 120 372 754 687 - 1,933
Net carrying amount: REFE :
At 31 December 2012 —Z%#+-f=1+-H 3,188 1,228 313113 3,675 59,470 70,874
At 31 December 2011 R=E——%+=-A=+—H - 12 950 330 43,351 44,743
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — 15. 1% - BERRZE — &
GROUP (continuea) % (&)
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s buildings in the PRC were RZZT——F+-_A=+—0 K&
held under medium term lease (2011: Nil) . The buildings were B A EFUAREBAORES (=
occupied by the Group during the year and the Group is in the T——F ) ZFBFREAHAR
process to apply the property certificate. SEER AEBERFFHER

= o
i)

16. LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP 16. THFEHE — XEE

2012 2011

—E—_—fF —E——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARETF T

At 1 January n—HA—H 36,035 36,789

Addition NE 938 —
Transferred from deposits paid wE G EMiEE (BisE18)

(note 18) 1,041 =
Amortisation charge during the year & A #$4& 58 (796) (754)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 37,218 36,035
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s land use rights in the PRC RZE——"F+-_A=+—H K&
were held under medium term leases (2011: medium). B R T AT AR A

FBECZE——%F ) -

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 17. R B AT — A4
=

2012 2011
—¥——F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT
Investments in subsidiaries R B R RIEE

— Unlisted shares, at cost — LA - IRBUARET 51,110 51,110
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries  FEUL (1) B B 2 R FUIA 128,521 (5,258)
Balances with subsidiary were unsecured, interest-free and MBARGHAEKT RERKE

repayable on demand. KEE -
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

(Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

17. R B A TR — A4
A (&)

RZE——F+_A=1+—HBWHEBAR

follows: BZEBIT
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment paid up Effective
and kind of share capital/ interest Principal
legal entity registered capital  held by the activities and
XA S, ST BERTR Company place of operation
Company name 1 2 BEEAR RATER TEERKR
NGRS FERERZER AMERZFHE BFEzERz EEMY
Interests held directly
EEEEER
Hero Praise Limited Incorporated in the 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding in
British Virgin Islands, of US$1 Hong Kong
limited liability company
EEARAT REBRLES 1REEIZETZ 100% REEKR BB
I AV L)
EREMEAR

Interests held indirectly

BEFAER

Aurora Logistics Capital
Assurance Limited

JERBERRERATA

Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty
Company Limited
(AL RBITHRAR
BRDA)
(“Hebei Da Sheng”)

AL RBEITERER DA
(DAL R E&7T))

Incorporated in
Hong Kong, limited
liability company
REBEMAKL -
EREMEAR

Incorporated in the
PRC a sino-foreign
joint venture

R B ASL
RO ERE

200 ordinary shares
of HK$1each

2008 BB T
il

US$13,800,000

%7t.13,800,0007T

100%

100%

95%

95%

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REER - BB

Provision of financial
guarantee service,
performance
guarantee service
and advisory service
in the PRC

RESBERRY
BARAERRSE
PA K% A AR 7S -

i

105



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R M AT

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 17.

(Continued)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully
establishment paid up
and kind of share capital/
legal entity registered capital
MR ERITR
Company name 1 B R BERAE
NG HRERZER AfER 2 F#E

RHMEBARER — &AD
A (&)

Effective

interest Principal
held by the activities and
Company place of operation

ARAER  EEREBK
BHEzER EESH

Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Incorporated in the RMB110,000,000
Company Limited PRC, a sino-foreign
(REIT(EF)ERBR AT joint venture

97.55% Provision of financial
guarantee service,
performance
guarantee service
and advisory service

in the PRC
RETEP)ERERAR  RPEFZMRAL - AR#110,000,0007C  97.55% RESHERRY
HINEERE BHERRH
LA R A f PR 7%
H B

The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been examined by BDO Limited for
the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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18. DEPOSITS PAID — GROUP 18. Bitire — AE®

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T
Deposits paid for acquisition MU EEME N 2k (M)
of properties (note) 23,500 27,018
Deposit for leasehold HERB RS
improvements 1,952 798
25,452 27,816
Note: MIEE -

In September 2010, the Group entered into two agreements with Ja] 1t %7
RoEEMEAR QG (“HHRI") to acquire two properties for
considerations of RMB25,260,000 and RMB3,518,000 respectively. #75
o5 is a related party to the Company in which #78 25’s shareholder is one
of the Company’ s directors. According to the agreement, the properties
will be transferred to the Group upon full settlement of the considerations.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had made deposits of approximately
RMB27,018,000 to ¥75 22 and the remaining balance of approximately
RMB1,760,000 has been included in the Group’s capital commitment (note
29(b)) as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

During the year, RMB2,477,000, RMB1,041,000 and RMB798,000 were
transferred from non-current deposits paid to buildings, leasehold
improvements and land use rights respectively. These are non-cash
transactions and have been adjusted in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012.

RZZE—ZTFNA @ AEEEIL R EH
ERZEARAB ([FERE])TTEmMMOHE -
DRIAARK25,260,000 kAR
3,518,0007C Y FE R IB W) 2 © TR T2 BN A Al
ZHEAT  ARREF—(IEFANAETR
R o BIBEZE - ZEMEERE2HIMARE
BEBTFALEER - RZTE——F+-_f=1+—
H AEETHITREIMNHARE
27,018,000t 2 &% - MF TEHBH AR
1,760,000 EFFAREEBR T ——F+=
A=+—BE=Z—F+=ZA=+—HZ%&
AR AEHE (Bt sE29(b)) ©

FR - BEREAMEFEMERBIRE  HER
EhItFERAEZENTSINABARE
2,477,0007T + AR®1,041,0007T & AR
798,0007t ° Ll AFRERH  EREE
B ZHFF+ZA=t+—HUEFEZEERS
MEBXRAELFHE -
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19. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP 19. EWERF — &N&EE

The Group’s account receivables represent the service fee
income receivables.

For service fee income, the customers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts,
with a grace period of up to 180 days. The balance as at
reporting dates are interest-free and due from a large number
of diversified customers and hence there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. At 31 December 2012, no
allowances for bad and doubtful debts were provided as there
was no recent history of significant default in respect of these
customers (2011: Nil).

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
account receivables which are expected to be recovered within
one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

Based on the agreed payment terms as stipulated in the
contracts, ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables
as of 31 December 2012 is as follows:

REE 2 W R8RS & AU A E
WK -

ERBEBRHRAME W BEAKRE
BEHNZIERENFTE  ERHB&ES
#A180H - AEBENIREBH 2 &ERTY
RERRE—BEEZTLEEF  UES
AEFEERR RZT—Z=-F+=
A=+—H  BARZEEFP I &I
BEREANLE  BEARERELE
wWCE——F: 8| -

ARRIEZRRBENZSZHEHRNEH
WEE - AR —FAKE Z &Y
RN FEEEFRAEZFALEEAN
EHo

RIEA LFTETR 2 e M BUER » &
EBR T —F+_-_/F=+—8Z
FEWEBR R Z BREC DATIO T

2012 2011

—E—_F —E——14F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREFT

0 to 30 days 02 30H 1,644 10,348
31 to 90 days 312 90H 370 7,904
91 to 180 days 91 180H 11,986 4,450
Over 180 days HBiB180H 7,466 102
21,466 22,804
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19. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continueq)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables that were
not impaired is as follows:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

19. EWERR — XE£E »)

7 B O (E 2 UK EE 3k B )47
mF

2012 2011
—g—-—f —z——&
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Neither past due nor impaired AR B M RORE 1,218 10,300
1 to 90 days past due #HI1ZE90H 796 7,952
91 to 180 days past due @ HI91E180H 12,174 4,450
Over 180 days past due B HEfEE180H 7,278 102

21,466 22,804

Account receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

B8 B R ORE 2 8 UL AR 3015 A B R
SEERHFFIEEEREZEFPE
e REBERR ANEEERY
BRAEAEY  BEHREKRA/KA
2RNEO - HEERAR/BELERZE
RESRME LR E RS -

109



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M A

19. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continueq)

The Group holds collaterals over all its account receivables. In
the event of default or failure to repay any outstanding guarantee
amounts by the customers, the Group will proceed with sale of
collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level,
the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50%
to ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee
amount (2011: 50%). At the reporting date, the fair value of the
pledged assets in respect of account receivables is as follows:

19. EWERR — X&E£E8 »)

AEBER2HMEEERIFEER
o MEPEDSREBEERKE
NERE  ~2REHHEEERR - B
HBEBEERBKY  AEEZF
BEFIE B EL REFRE0%A T A
ERAREMEREBZAIKENE (ZF—
—% 1 50%) - RMEEH - AHEK
ERZCEREEZRAFENT ¢

2012 2011
—g-—-—& -—z——*
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - = MR E 235,987 8,013
Inventories e 380,682 240,819
Account receivables JrE U BR 31 50,437 —
Bank deposits (note) RITTE R (FFFE) 2,660 900

669,766 249,732

Certain assets have also been pledged to the Group to secure
the Group’s exposure under outstanding financial guarantee
contracts as at the reporting date (note 30).

Note:

The balance has been deposited to the Group’s PRC bank accounts as
collaterals.
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20.

21.

22.

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP 20. EERBITHER — K
These pledged bank deposits have a maturity of one year as at RZFE-—ZF+A=+T—H%EE
31 December 2012 (2011: one year). Such deposits have been ERRTFERIBREA—F (2%
pledged to certain banks as securities for providing financial ——F —F) ZEFRCERTE
guarantee services to the customers. The effective interest rates TR1T - ERMAZEFPIRHFE ZRR
of the Group’s pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2012 BRE - RZFB—ZF+H=1
were 0.35% to 3.5% (2011: 0.5% to 3.5%) per annum. — B AEEREHRRITTRAZER
MEREFOIBERILSE(ZE——
F : 0.5FEZE35E) °
As at 31 December 2012, all pledged deposits were N_E——F+=-_HA=+—8 " A
denominated in RMB (2011: all). RMB is not freely convertible EEREFRUAREFE(ZE——
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the F:A) c ARETIEHRERAH
PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC e BHFRERZEELATF
government. B AT B e 2 N BR I FT AR PR ©
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES — GROUP 21. ZRFBITHEER — &
These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts of the ZERTERDFRRAEERAF
Group as collaterals of financial guarantees (note 32) and related ZRITERPIERAREBR 2 ER m (ft
account receivables (note 19). As these bank deposits are 7132) KRR FEMER K (Fi5E19) AR
restricted to the use by the Group, they are not under the cash ZERITHERTIBHEREEER -
management of the Group. WABAEE 2R ER -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP 22. RERBEEFEHED &
-
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Cash in hand and bank balances F#FIR & & IRT1T4 & 4,002 3,768

Included in the balance of approximately RMB 1,310,000 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: RMB4,000) was denominated in
HK$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and were
kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

RZE——F+_A=+—Hit A%
24 AR #1,310,0007T J3 AB TTETE
(ZZ——%F : AR¥4,00000) ° fTE
HMEHRTIAARKEE  WRHEH
REFE - NARETEREHRAREME
¥ BPBELZEESAZPREK
5 B bE 2 SINEBR Hl FTARFR o

111



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M A

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP

(Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

23. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEFERRED INCOME — GROUP

2. BeRBFESEEEEH - K

£8

RITFER MBI RBEHERAE
BEZFHNERER - RITEREFEA
3T HA I 458 B R B TR AC 8% 2 {5 A R AT R

7 o

23. [EETE A HttESFE
REZLWRA —AXEE

2012 2011

—¥——F —F——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Accruals and other payables FEET & A & E b FE T 58 15,810 11,314
Dividend payable to JEASH B B 1 B FE 1 A 2

non-controlling interests pdi) =

of a subsidiary - 1,000

Deposits received BEiRE 400 —
Deferred income from financial 2R B B i &R Z B E W A

guarantee 7,554 3,253

Business and other tax payables & {75 Z i & H b §5 78 573 1,290

24,337 16,857

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS —
GROUP

The balances were unsecured and interest free and has been
fully capitalised on 5 January 2012 (note 26(a)).
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES — GROUP 25 EEHIEBEE -XEEH

Deferred tax liabilities were recognised at 5% withholding tax
rate on the undistributed retained earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries (2011: 5%) (note 11) for the year ended 31
December 2011 and their movements during the year are as

BE_ZT——H+_-_A=1T—HBLL#HF
BERREHREXSE (ZF——F : 5
[B) (MEE11) #ERR 2 A B8 BT /& 1 7]
ZARD KRB ENZ BELEHBAE

follows: MRERNZSBINT
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
At 1 January n—H—H - 750
Charged to profit or loss INGEIAE=Engi]73
during the year - 200
Credited to profit or loss REREBERFTA
during the year - (950)
Total deferred tax BEEBIRBENFRNEBERTA
credited to profit
or loss during the year - (750)

At 31 December WN+-—A=+—8H

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the PRC’s subsidiaries’
undistributed retained earnings of which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised are approximately RMB1,882,000
(2011: RMB895,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

W-_ETE——%F+-A=+—H ' #Emh
BB AR ADIRTENRSBRE MR
REEHBEBZ R ERERLY
A ARE1.882,000C (ZE——4F ¢
AR #895,0007T) - AR AL E A E
FlIZEMBARIZIREEE  BZE
ERETERRARRBEE - WEAZ
EEHRABLERIERE -
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26.

114

SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number
of shares Amount
BB EE &8
Notes HK$’000 RMB’000
i & TELT ARETT
Authorised: BE
Upon incorporation PAFER A AL B &
and at 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—H—H 38,000,000 380 452
Increase in authorised ETE LRI N
ordinary shares (b) 4,962,000,000 49,620 61,063
At 31 December 2012, “2——f+-A=+—H"
ordinary shares of %I BAR0.018 T
HK$0.01 each 5,000,000,000 50,000 61,515
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBEAR
Upon incorporation R 7 1 = =
Issue of shares pursuant to BEBEABTRG
the restructuring exercise 9,999 = =
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=+—H
and at 1 January 2012 k-_E——F—F—H 10,000 = -
Loan capitalisation BEREXE (a) 10,000 = -
Capitalisation issue ERILEST (o) 1,389,980,000 13,900 11,295
Issue of ordinary shares in RARBEERTLAEK
public offering (c) 150,000,000 1,500 1,219
Issue of ordinary shares RITEERERTLAR
on exercise of share options 27 3,000,000 30 25
At 31 December 2012, ordinary RZ-ZZE——F+=-A=+—H
shares of HK$0.01 each FREAEROVET 1,543,000,000 15,430 12,539
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@) On 5 January 2012, the Company allotted and issued 8,872 shares
to Team King Limited (“Team King”) and 1,128 shares to Joyful
Promote Limited (“Joyful Promote”) in full satisfaction of a loan in
an aggregate sum of approximately RMB 108.03 million due from
the Company to the shareholders of the Company. An amount of
RMB108.3 million was credited to share premium account.

(b)  On 5 January 2012, following the authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the
creation of an additional 4,962,000,000 shares, the Company
allotted and issued 1,389,980,000 new shares to Team King and
Joyful Promote. An amount of approximately RMB11,295,000
(HK$13,899,800) standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company was capitised and applied in paying in full
at par at total of 1,389,980,000 shares for allotment and issue to

the above shareholders.

() The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 6 January 2012 and 150,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at HK$0.28 per share. After deducting related
listing expenses, an amount of RMB31,070,000 was credited to

share premium account.

27. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(a) Group

Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve represented the difference between the
par value of the shares issued in exchange for the entire
share capital of the Group pursuant to the Restructuring
Exercise. There is no merger reserve presented as the

amount is immaterial.

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

26. B2 (&)

GEX

(a)

R-E——F—FAB  AARDHIE
AEBRAR (DAE) REEBRAH
([B=])BE & E178,8720% & 1,1280%
f&fn - OB ARRGER AR RIIRELR
B AR #108,030,000C 2 ER » A
A R108,300,0007t 2 £ 55 A
R HEERA -

R-ZFE——F—AHEA BEEX
4,962,000,0008% f& 7 #§ Zx A 51 T I’
7N 380,000 7% 7T 50,000,000/ 7T
2% ARBRDRMAIRESRER
#%171,389,980,000/% ¥T i {5 ° AN A &
BHmERERERODARK
11,295,0007T (13,899,8007 7t) Ty 1E
BAR - WARREESRZ MR LR
TRECEE I #1748 51 1,389,980,0008% %

5 o

ARRRAR T ——F— B/ BEH
R FAIZAR £ - 150,000,000 & M
ME{EO.01E T2 B0 Th iR B A0.2878 7T
BT o ASIERI E A EANMEE - B
AR#31,070,0002 & FE & AR
BRA -

27. e — AKER QT

(a)

REE

AEE B EBHERN G E
HEBE -

BHFEFHEREBEEARANURBA
SEEEA 22 HITROEE
BRI AZHER - ARE
MY TEK - BRI EZE GHH
e
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27. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Company

27. #E —AEBER AT @

(b) &2 F

Share-hased

Contributed Share payment Accumulated
surplus premium reserve losses Total
(note c) (note d)
HRfAEE
EfRS R EE BT ] ZiER At
(Hzke) (Krikd)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 10 March 2011 RZZ—%=At1H
(Date of incorporation) (e A ) - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares pursuant R EBARTEER
tothe Restructuring Exercise ~ — EEBAETZR S
— Transactions with owners 51,110 — — — 51,110
Loss and total comprehensive ~ BREHHZAUNEE
income for the period - - - (8,054) (8,054)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——E+Zf=1-A
and 1 January 2012 R-E--%-f-H 51,110 - - (8,054) 43,056
Loan Capitalisation EHER . 108,300 - . 108,300
Capitalisation issue BAIES - (11,295) - - (11,205)
Issue of ordinary shares in FARBERALAR 38
public offering, net - 31,070 - - 31,070
Equity-settled share option RUNRELERRE
granted - - 11,571 - 11,571
Exercise of share option (note 28) 17 B M (i £28) = 1742 (231) - 1511
Loss and total comprehensive  AEERE R
income for the year RREYELE - - - (17,810) (17,810)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z#+-A=+-0 51,110 129,817 11,340 (25,864) 166,403

(G) Contributed surplus represented the difference between
the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired and the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to the restructuring exercise.
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27.

28.

RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(d) The share premium account of the Company represents
the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 1 December 2011 for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the Group, and
any other eligible persons for their contribution to the Group.
On 23 March 2012, the Company granted an aggregate of
150,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.63
per share of the Company to the eligible perrons, which
generally have an exercise period of three years commenced
or commencing on various dates in 2012 and ending in 2015.
Each of the grantees has paid HK$1 to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of option. There is no
vesting condition of the Scheme. Equity-settled share-based
payment of RMB11,571,000 has been charged to profit or loss
for the year in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
set out in note 5.13.

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

27. #fE —AEER AT ®

(d) A2mEzBRABHEEDIERER
EHRAD BB BITRHEES

BER ©

28. DL 0 B B EN R (LR

REH)

ARARR T ——F+ = A—BRHK
RERR R & ([T E]) - AmAR
NEIIAREFE MK E 2 E A2
FEBEERTMEMEERALRD
BE  FARSHASBAIEER
ZHEEEER R FBE——F=A—
+=8 ' ARRIRITEESRA QA
BH0.63BTMAEEBRALTREAH
150,000,00017 BE A # - HA7{F HARBK
tARSM=F H-ZE-—_—FEBEH
MR T —RAFERIE - FAAR
AREZBREZNE - MARAX
BT - ZETEIWEFBIRMG - RIB
NEBEHNHFES 132 S K © A
B BEEMRKUABRREE) AR
11,571,000 E KR AFE 2 BE
[3{% o
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

118

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or

outstanding

Particulars and movements of the outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme during the years ended 31

28. DA 10 B BN (LR

REHE) &
CEHEmMERTEZER
A

BARNBERETER S M EARITE
HERER " S——&+-F=+—

December 2012 (2011: Nil) were as follows: BEFE(CE——F: &) HEZF
BREBHMT :
2012 Price
Number oé share options of shares
BEERE RE
Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled Balance asat  Date of Exercisable Exercise
Name and category Balance as at during during during during 31 December  grant of Periods of price per
of participant 1 January 2012 the year the year the year the year 2012 share option  share options share option
Hog-% Hog-%
N ) _tZR=t-R BEE  BEESE
SRAZHERAT &% FEECRE AEEEAR  FERSAN  AEECHH &% RHAH BREZGES ﬁﬁ%
BT
Director
gz
Mr. Chen Xiao Li - 15,400,000 3,000,000) - - 12,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
RN 22 March 2015
E--f  ZF-C
ZAZt=zR ZAztzH%
“2-1%
=A-1zH
Consultants - 77,000,000 - - - 77,000,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
i 22 March 2015
% —F--
ZAZtzR zZAztzH%
“2-n%
=A-1:H
Employees - 56,400,000 - - - 56,400,000 23 March 2012 23 March 2012 to 0.63
& 2 March 2015
—E--fF CZF-CF
ZAZtzR ZAztzR%®
“2-n%
“A-1-H
600,000 = = - 600,000 23 March 2012 7 July 2012 to 0.63
6 July 2015
“E--&  -E-Cf
ZAZT=H +tAtA%E
21
tARA
600,000 = = - 600,000 23 March 2012 1 August 2012 to 0.63
31 August 2015
“E-CF -E-C
A=tz J\A-R%
ZE-n%
NAZT-H
Sub-total - 57,600,000 = = . 57,600,000
NGt
Igga\ - 150,000,000 (3,000,000) = - 147,000,000
i
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or
outstanding (continueq)

Notes:

(i)

(i

The fair value for total share options granted to director, employees
and consultants were amounted to RMB1,188,000, RMB4,443,000
and RMB5,940,000 respectively and was calculated using the
Binomial option pricing model by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited. The following information is used in the determining the
fair value of options granted during the year.

Grant date 23 March 2012
Option pricing model used Binomial
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.63
Annualised volatility 41% to 47%
Risk-free interest rate 0.14% to 0.22%
Expected life of the option 0.64 to 1.72 years

The annualised volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
Company'’s share price and by reference to other similar industry as
listed in PRC, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. The expected life used in
the model has been adjusted based on management’s best estimate.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses comprises:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

28. LRI AEENER G
REH) @)

B % e R AT 2 BB AR
S @)

fi i

() BTEF REMERZBREGZN
FEDRI/ARE1,188,0007T « AR
#4,443,0007T &2 A R #5,940,0007T
Wi FIELTTRI 2 AR A PR R A — A B
EEEAGFE - TIERTAREEF
MRS AT E

A E - F

=A=-+=H
FrAERETEEN ZIAHARE
T E(E 0.637 7T
FEIRIEER A1%ELT%
12 [ B ) 0.14%7~0.22%

B TR 0.64F1.724F

FEREERDBRBEARBREAEIRE)
RBERHE LT ZELUTE - LRE
Bz BRI AR IORE) 2 BB 1R
- EXAARRFHEREEREZ

RIEGEFRE -

(i) AR REENR CAREEE) 2 X

BIE
2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Equity-settled schemes to MEE (BiFEES)RHE
employees (including director) 2 LARXHEAS E =1 &l 5,631 -
Equity-settled schemes to MEEBALUINA LIRS
eligible persons other than AR E 5T 8 (B B REFRIN
employees and directors 5,940 -
11,571 =

Share options were granted to the consultants in light of their
contribution and services provided in the preparation of the
Company’s public offering in 2011 and their continuous contribution
to the Group. The Group measured the fair value of services received
from the Consultants by reference to the fair value of those granted
to eligible employees as management considers that the services
provided by the consultants and employees are similar in nature.

BRETRTER  URBHAR-F
——FARRAAABEERERZERR
REZREARMPIEAEE 2 FER
Bl - ANE IR BR AR N & PRt
ZIRBEEE EAEL - MAKES2ER
TRERERE 2 FEMFTEEREHR
B RS < A FE ©
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28. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(Continued)

Details of share options granted or
outstanding (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Share options and weighted average exercise prices are during the
year (2011: Nil) are as follows:

28. LRI AEENR G
REH) @)
O RTHEZER
EFHE @

ByeE : ()

@iy FABKRERMNEFLHITEE(ZZT—
—F ) 2HWF

2012

—E——F
Weighted
average
Number exercise price
#HE IEFHTEE
HK$
BT
Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&& - -
Granted during the year AFEEFBERE 150,000,000 0.63
Exercised during the year REFEITHE (3,000,000) 0.63
Balance at 31 December R+—_A=+—B#%&% 147,000,000 0.63

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options
during the year was HK$0.68 (2011: Nil)

(iv)  Outstanding options at 31 December 2012 had an exercise price
of HK$0.63 (2011: Nil) and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 27 months (2011: Nil).

29. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY
(a) Operating lease commitments

Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings with
related parties (note 30(a)) and independent third parties
as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

FRITFEBREE B2 NETFERES
0.688 L (ZE——F : #&) -

vy M-ZZE——F+-A=+—8 " KT
5 2 BRI T (5B R0.638 L (=T —
—F | MBRT2METFHENEF
HAE7TER (2T ——F - &) -

29. AE — RNEERAKRDQ T
(a) KEHERE

RZE——F+=-_A=+—H"
Rk B RS E 5 (5E30(a) KB
F=FZ AR B EE
FAREEEMESAT :

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFT
Within one year —FE2ZR 1,536 1,015
Within two to five years —ERF 148 682
1,684 1,697
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29. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)
(a) Operating lease commitments (continueq)

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three
years, with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry
dates or at days as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective landlords. None of these leases
includes any contingent rentals.

(b) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments as at
31 December 2012:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

29. FAE — REBRAXAQ T

&)
(a) REHEERE ®

AEERBEZHEHERETY
X -HEVIRE—Z==F 7
EENI B SR A EEEE
EXTDRBE BN - 8\
HEBREIMAEE -

(b) BEAREE
R-ZE——F+=ZA=+—8"
REEBUTERFIE

2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Contracted, but not ERTA) - BAREE -
provided for:
Land and buildings T REF

— related parties — @& (fHaE18)

(note 18) 1,760 1,760
Leasehold improvements FHE ¥ & & - 2,495
Construction in progress £ T2 21,683 31,366

23,443 35,621

There are no operating lease commitments and capital
commitments for the Company as at 31 December 2012
(2011: Nil)

ARFIRN—_E——F+=-fA=+
— B IV RS T E AR N B AN
B(CZZE—F &) -
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

122

(a)

(b)

Balances and transactions

Other than the related party balances and transactions

30. BAE KT

(a)

BHREXS

BRINMR B MISE R T INEE 2 A8

disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial FEBREZRZIN  REBRFR
statements, the Group had the following material BUTERBERIRS :
transactions with related parties during the year:
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
License fee paid to BN EES TR
a related party - 567
Rental expenses paid to EfNEEFEE
related parties 117 137

The Group entered into one to three years lease in respect
of certain leasehold properties from related parties. With
reference to the terms negotiated between the related
parties, the Group paid license fee and rental expenses
for office premises to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan, mother of Mr.
Chang, and certain related companies, of which the
Company’s shareholders are also the major shareholders
of these related companies.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 10(a).

(b)

AEERBEELETHEYMER
M—E=FZHEE - K2RAR
BRI NREERE L
EMRAFTHELL REEZE
B RETRE AR EEE
EEERAX  NRARIZBERBZ
FHERRZEERR -

RETEIEEEAES

EEWRAAEETEEEABY
KE)RBZE-_Z——-F+=-A=
+—HIEFE ST AR
10(a) °
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

32.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

3. &M TH

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

(%A

R_TE—Z—F+-_R=+—HB &8

Ale@TAZKREENT :

Group Company
A&EE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=$--& -z % -g-& -z =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETr AR®TR ARETR
Financial assets — tREE —
Loans and receivables EXREKER
Account receivables FE U BR 3% 21,466 22,804 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Wt Bf B A B 5008 - = 128,521 =
Pledged bank deposits BERBITER 47,389 43,300 = —
Restricted bank deposits RBEHIBTER 14,411 7,300 - —
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReFEER 4,002 3,768 151 =
87,268 77,172 128,672 -
Financial liabilities — eREE—
At amortised costs BEHEEAR
Accruals and other payables B ERREMENTE 15,810 11,314 840 3,540
Dividend payable to non-controling ~ FEfH Bt B 2 B FEERARAE 25
interest of a subsidiary 2B - 1,000 - =
Amounts due to shareholders AR EE S - 108,300 - -
Amount due to a subsidiary FERTI B 2 R R - - - 5,258
15,810 120,614 840 8,789

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise account
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, accruals and other
payables and amounts due to shareholders. These financial

instruments mainly arise from its operations.

32. M EREE B FERBUR

AEBZTESRTABFEREKERR
REAMEWRIR - EEMRITHER
AelkBReE
o EETERREMENKIE - ARk

EEE  BRHRTE

ENBRRHIE - ZEEMTATER
BEKEXER -
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32.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values as at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum
level, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The board of the directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest
rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances and pledged bank deposits. The Group
currently has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate but may enter into interest rate hedging
instruments in the future to hedge any significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

32 BEEREEEERBER

&)

REREHRKR  AEBERTAZK
EHEERE 2 A FERE - R FER
BIOREERRREZFERTALZ
HEMHEREL °

SR BB b
RFBEE R EAHG 2 F
B R EEBRERE - BRIERY
BHA LY A BT EREAVE -

BRASECRTIAZ T Z2RR AT
RER  JNERR - EERBERD
BEERR  BRASESH LiERZ
AEDRERE - AR E I EIAME
MOTETAREMT AEHPRAE -
AREBEWE[ARETIEESRT
HFEERE  -EFERTLREE
B PR R 2 BOR - BT e

FEER

MERBESRIARTENARKER
TRERNEXZEEMKE AR - F
FHNETABEHRAKEAXRZTTS
MEREBER

AREE M KE R E R R BIIRITHAR
LREERRITERERE -  AERERE
A 48 ¥ < 4 B DA S O BT 2 N SRR
@ ERERARKEFERF KRR
EERTEMERERTA -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. Biis A EIEEEZENRBEER

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

As the Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB and
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the Group’s major
operating entities, the currency risk resulting from the Group’s
daily operations is considered not significant. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain
financial guarantee from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group entered into financial guarantee contracts
in which it has guaranteed the bank the repayment of the loan
by customers of the Group. The Group has the obligation to
compensate the bank for the loss it would suffer because the
customers fail to repay. The Group’s maximum exposure under
the financial guarantee contracts is disclosed in “liquidity risk”
below. To mitigate such risk, the Group requests its customers
to provide collaterals as appropriate. In the event of default or
failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts by the
customers, the Group will proceed with the sale of collaterals.
In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level, the Group’s
average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50% to ensure the
recoverability of the outstanding guarantee amount. As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s exposures under unexpired

#&)
SN L B

HRAEBZWELRAXEIER/RAR
%o MABHAEEEERAGBHIA
ARB2I|(HAAEEETREEEHRE
ZIMEEER) AEERAREBEL
ZAHMERBRI TNEKR o AR EREIL
EINELPEK o AT > BEEEBER
SMNE L RER - YERTEEREEY
HMERINERR ©

EEER

AEEZBRERFMABBRHASEEE
SREERZEFYUSHERESR
B AXEEBRITEREEREDN &
ASERERTFRARITEE ZHKE
ERER - AEBEBEETERP REE
EERBREERITES ALK -
AEBBEERAGHNEAET ZRARR
BEATXRBESRR] - BRIE
ZRR  AEEZREFRERHEESE

TG - B EATREEETM
REMERE  AEEKHEESEF
Mo RERFEBEERRKTE A&
B P ERGEELRERENS0%
AT - ERAREMEREZTRE
MoR_E——F+=ZH=+—8 -
REBRIAMERRELNBELIU

financial guarantee contracts were secured by the pledged T2 EEREEEER
assets of the customers as follows:

2012 2011
—E2--F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Property, plant and equipment 1% - = MR E 640,568 185,183
Inventories FE 1,142,892 325,966
Account receivables JE W BR TR 62,382 48,200
Bank deposits (note) RITE R (BE) 14,411 7,300
1,860,253 566,649
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32.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (continueq)

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
hold collaterals to cover its risks associated with account
receivables. The account receivables arising from the financial
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were
secured by certain assets of the customers. The fair value of
the pledged assets, which are also pledged to secure the
Group’s exposure under unexpired financial guarantee contracts
as mentioned above, as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is as
follows:

32 BEEREEEERBER

%)
EERK @

EWERRERZIFEER - MAKHE
ZEERRBRITTEKN - AEEFHIK
RN EBRBERER AR - 1B
T FRZFE——F+ZA=+
—H - BERREHELERIIRZUA
BEZETEEERR RZT—=
ER-_TE——E+-"A=+—H0' B
EREE (ARMAEERI S EE
RE D 2 BB IREIER (A0 _E3CFri) )
ZRAFEMT

2012 2011

—E--F —F——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - W= MR E 231,987 8,013
Inventories FE 336,082 125,086
Account receivables JrE U BR 3R 20,437 -
Bank deposits (note) RITTE R (FFFE) 2,660 900
591,166 134,899

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise of pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from potential default of the counter-party,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. Credit risk in pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as cash is deposited in
the banks of high credit rating.

Note:

Bank deposits have been deposited to the Group’s PRC bank accounts
as collaterals.

AEBEMERMTA(EERRECDEN
RITERMBRSRESFEERB) 26
ERBRRERYTAEENZER
HEREBRHESENZELAZER
B - ARSI HFERREEEFR IR
7 CEWETERAMEEZRRESS
BIE A 2 EEAREMRE -

fi i

ZIRITFERCFAREEREIRITERS - ER
Hifam e
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31
December 2012 and 2011, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, are as follows:

FEERARSHBEESRAT
ZE-FFR

32. B ERERE B FERBUER

(4)
RBEEER

AEBEREERANLBHRSE
B2 HRAERERFTRRSHH
B NENEHEREHARDHESR
jjz o

TRBMAEBRIZES L ARBEIERIE
JEemBEER_E— KT
F+-A=+—"HZIHEBEMR :

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within Repayable on
amount cash flow 1 year demand
BNRER
REE BeRELE R—ER REXEE
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N | ARETRT AR¥ETR ARETRT AR%Tx
2012 —2-CF
Other payables and accruals EEAFIERETER 15,810 15,810 15,810 -
Financial guarantees issued BRTHEER
Maximum amount guaranteed BEEREATE 410,100 410,100 - 410,100
2011 —E——-F
Other payables and accruals EEMFIERETER 11,314 11,314 11,314 =
Dividend payable to non-controlling FER —RINB AR
interest of a subsidiary Rz 2 B 1,000 1,000 1,000
Amounts due to shareholders FERT AR R 5008 108,300 108,300 108,300 —
120,614 120,614 120,614 —
Financial guarantees issued BRTHEER
Maximum amount guaranteed BERRAZE 205,300 205,300 = 205,300
Company
VNN
2012 —2-CF
Other payables and accruals HttENFEREFER 840 840 840 -
2011 —E——F
Other payables and accruals EEAFIERETER 3,540 3,540 3,540 =

127



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R M A

32.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity. Net debts include amounts due
to shareholders less pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. R REEBZERBEK
AND POLICIES (Continued) =)
Capital management (continveq) BEREE &)
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as RZTE——ZFRZFE—F+=ZRA=
follows: +—BZzBELRENT
2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Amounts due to shareholders JE 1 A% 3R RIE — 108,300
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEERRITER (47,389) (43,300)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRLEEIEREE (4,002) (3,768)
Net debts BEFH N/A ~EAR 61,232
Total equity M= B 197,303 52,553
Gearing ratio BELE N/A REA 1.17:1
33. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 3B. BHNEREN

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts for which
the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its customers who
enter into contracts with third parties for services to be rendered
or goods to be supplied within an agreed time period. The
Group has the obligation to compensate the third parties for
their losses arising from the defaults in contracts by the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2012, there was no outstanding
balance of unexpired performance guarantee contracts as
performance guarantee contracts were all completed (2011:

Nil).

REBRBOEREY  BUAEERA
EAERFPHAN B EHEAK TR
ZREIHE s, ERBEE =2
BH  RHER  AEEBEARE
CHRAREECRFBRAFMEEAZE
BREEMN RBE——F+_A=
+—H - REHBAEREHILER
REEBHRTK - DEABBOEREH
EETK(ZE——F &) o
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PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

The Group’s exposure of account receivables of performance
guarantee contracts was secured by assets of the customers.
The fair value of theses pledged assets as at each reporting
date is as follows:

33. BHEREYN »®

A BB IR A& IR ER SR
HYRK AR AEEER - %
EREREERNSRE BN ATE
mT

2012 2011

—E——F —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETFT

Inventories FE - 114,833

The risk under any performance guarantee contracts is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. The nature of the business
underwritten by the Group is generally of one year or less in
duration; however it is still subject to some unpredictability.
The key risks that the Group faces are timing and severity of
claims relative to expectations.

The risk for performance guarantee contracts is dependent
upon the occurrence of uncertain future events, in particular,
the extent of service not rendered or products not supplied by
the customers and the value of the contractual obligation that
may arise from its customers’ failure to perform services or
supply goods to the counterparties.
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34.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

It is the Group’s objective to deal only with credit worthy
customers. Its policy for accepting guarantee services is based
on its risk assessment of customers and their collaterals. The
Group has taken measures to identify risks and manage such
risks at every stage along the guarantee approval process and
the post-transaction monitoring process. The Group conducts
thorough due diligence with a strict credit approval process for
the approval of performance guarantee. The Group’s due
diligence team evaluates the proposed pledged assets through
on-site visits and by taking into account of liquidity, prospects,
market outlook of the pledged assets (if applicable) and general
economic factors which may impact the value of the pledged
assets. In arriving at a valuation, the due diligence team
considers the historical experience with similar collateral, current
market prices, industry trends, government data and other
relevant sources. The Group also reviews the creditworthiness
of its customers from time to time and ensure that sufficient
collaterals are obtained to cover potential losses. The Group
established a post-transaction monitoring process implemented
by the Group’s experienced monitoring team to conduct regular
inspections and valuations on the collaterals provided by
customers and customers’ creditworthiness on monthly basis.
The Group also conducts spontaneous inspection of the
operation of its customers. Based on these assessments, the
Group considers whether any insurance liability has to be made.

There is no significant concentration of risk under performance
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

NON-COMPLIANT GUARANTEE SERVICES

In 2011, there were instances where Hebei Da Sheng and
Xiamen Da Sheng did not comply with the thresholds prescribed
by the interim measures for the administration of financial
guarantee companies B & R A B B R ETHE (“Interim
Measures”), that the outstanding guaranteed amount of a single
customer provided by a financial guarantee company should
not exceed 10% of its net asset value (the “10% NAV
Threshold”).

33.

34.
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NON-COMPLIANT GUARANTEE SERVICES

(Continued)

Hebei Da Sheng and a customer entered into four corporate credit
guarantee contracts during the period from April 2010 to March
2011. The aggregate outstanding guaranteed amount for the first
three contracts of this customer was within the 10% NAV
Threshold. When Hebei Da Sheng entered into the fourth contract
in March 2011 with the same customer, the aggregate outstanding
guaranteed amount of such customer became RMB18 million,
representing approximately 15.6% of the net asset value of Hebei
Da Sheng as at 28 February 2011 (being the then latest available
net asset value of Hebei Da Sheng as per its management account
prior to the entering of the relevant contract in March 2011), and
therefore exceeded the 10% NAV Threshold. On 1 April 2011,
such customer repaid RMB6 million, the outstanding guaranteed
amount of such customer therefore reduced to RMB12 million,
representing approximately 10.4% of the then latest available net
asset value of Hebei Da Sheng as of 28 February 2011. The
outstanding guaranteed amount for such customer as at 31
December 2011 was however RMB12 million, representing
approximately 10.72% of Hebei Da Sheng’s net asset value as at
31 December 2011.

Xiamen Da Sheng and a customer entered into two contracts
in December 2010 and January 2011 respectively with an
aggregate outstanding guaranteed amount of RMB36 million,
which also exceeded the 10% NAV Threshold, representing
approximately 33.2% of the net asset value of Xiamen Da Sheng
as at 30 November 2010. In December 2011, this customer
repaid RMB18 million, the outstanding guaranteed amount for
this customer therefore reduced to RMB18 million. As at 31
December 2011, the outstanding guaranteed amount for this
customer was RMB18 million, representing approximately
15.46% of Xiamen Da Sheng’s net asset value as at
31 December 2011.

Management have undertaken to indemnify and hold the Group
indemnified from and against all or any losses, damages,
liabilities, costs, expenses and fees as a result of or
consequential upon any penalty imposed on Hebei Da Sheng
and Xiamen Da Sheng as a result of the abovementioned non-
compliant guarantee services.

There were no non-compliant guarantee services for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 February 2013, 3,000,000 and 4,000,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were exercised by a consultant
and an employee respectively at an exercise price of HK$0.63.
The number of outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at the date of this report is 140,000,000.
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